
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

September 16, 29, October 1, 2015 6
Payroll Report

Payroll/Overtime 10
Warrants

Accounts Payable 13
Resolution Approving Agreement with the Madera Police
Department for the Use of the Kerman Police Department's
Firearms Range Facility

Staff Report - Madera Police Department agreement 30
Resolution Amending the 2015-16 Public Safety Employee
Salary Scale to Include the Rank of Lieutenant

Public Safety Employees Salary Scale 2015-2016 36
Water Conservation Leak Notification Report

Leak Notification Report 40
Resolution Amending Condition No. 8 in Exhibit 'A' of Resolution
13-68 Relating to Display of Beer Merchandise by Walmart
Stores Inc.

Staff Report - Walmart 44
Resolution Approving Reimbursement Agreement for Walmart
Off-Site Improvements

Staff Report - Walmart Reimbursement 52
Purchase of Seven (7) 2016 Ford Explorers Through the State
of California Department of Government Services Cooperative
Purchasing Agreement for the Police Department

Staff Report - Police Vehicle Purchase 64
Resolution Approving Contract Planning Services

Staff Report - Planning Services 72
Planning Commission Stipend Survey

Staff Report - Planning Commission Survey 120

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, October 7, 2015 

6:30 PM 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor  
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Recognition of Jared Christopherson's Katey's Kids Park Eagle Scout Project (PG) 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

  

2



2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: September 16, 29, October 1, 2015  
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: August 30, 2015 - September 12, 2015: $127,833.79; Retro Pay & Other: 
$3,132.21: Overtime: $5,656.05; Holiday OT at 1/2: $1,626.88; Standby: $1,206.68; 
Comp Time Earned: 4.88      
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1. Nos. 7161-7310  
2.  Excepting from 9/16/15 meeting - Sebastian: 7133 - $3,149.42  
 Excepting - Sebastian: 7234 - $150.00, Sebastian: 7280 - $560.00 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreement with the Madera Police Department for the 
Use of the Kerman Police Department's Firearms Range Facility (JKB) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion approve resolution agreement with Madera 
Police Department for the use the Kerman Police Department Range located at 15485 
W. Church Avenue, Kerman.     
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Madera Police Department agreement 
 

E. SUBJECT: Resolution Amending the 2015-16 Public Safety Employee Salary Scale to 
Include the Rank of Lieutenant (JKB) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution amending the Public Safety 
Employee Salary Scale to include the rank of Lieutenant.     
 
ATTACHMENTS: Public Safety Employees Salary Scale 2015-2016 

  

3



F. SUBJECT: Water Conservation Leak Notification Report (KM) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Informational     
 
ATTACHMENTS: Leak Notification Report     
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 None 

 
4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Amending Condition No. 8 in Exhibit 'A' of Resolution 13-68 
Relating to Display of Beer Merchandise by Walmart Stores Inc. (JK) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion approve resolution amending Condition No. 8 
in Exhibit ‘A’ of Resolution 13-68 relating to display of beer merchandise by Walmart 
Stores Inc. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Walmart    
 

B. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Reimbursement Agreement for Walmart Off-Site 
Improvements (JJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving the Reimbursement 
Agreement with Walmart Real Estate Business Trust for off-site improvements installed 
for the development of their commercial shopping center. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Walmart Reimbursement   
 

C. SUBJECT: Purchase of Seven (7) 2016 Ford Explorers Through the State of California 
Department of Government Services Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for the Police 
Department (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the Finance Director to issue a Purchase Order for 
seven (7) 2016 Ford Explorers for a total of $198,471.50 to Folsom Lake Ford in 
Sacramento. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Police Vehicle Purchase   
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Contract Planning Services (JK) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving proposal from 
Collins and Schoettler for contract planning services. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Planning Services   

  

4



E. SUBJECT: Planning Commission Stipend Survey (JK) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council consider Planning Commission’s request and direct staff 
as appropriate. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Planning Commission Survey   
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 
 

A. Public Employee Appointment  
Title: City Manager 

B. Conference with Labor Negotiators 
City Designated Representatives: Mayor Hill and Councilmember Armstrong 
Regarding Unrepresented Employee Position: City Manager Candidate 

 
COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

5



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
September 16, 2015 

6:30 PM 
 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

Present: Rhonda Armstrong (RA) Gary Yep (GY), Fox (NF) 
Absent: Mayor Hill (SH), Nijjer (BN) 
Also Present: City Attorney Cantú, Chief of Police, Community Services Director, 
Finance Director, Public Works Director, City Engineer 

Voting: Yes, No, 
Absent (Abstain 
if needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor   

• Call to Order 6:30 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present 
except SH/BN 

• Invocation  

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved 
NF/RA 
w/changes to 
min/warrant #2 
(3-0-2) SH/BN 1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 

A. Mid-Valley Disposal 1st and 2nd Quarter Recycling Updates (MR) Presented 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL  

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 

Approved 
RA/NF (3-0-2) 
SH/BN 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll  

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented.  

C. SUBJECT: Warrants   

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 
 

 

6



D. SUBJECT: Water Conservation Leak Notification Report (KM)  

RECOMMENDATION: Informational only.  

E. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending August 31, 2015 (TJ)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as 
presented     

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. SUBJECT: Public Hearing Ordinance Adding Section 17.94 to Title 17 of the 
Kerman Municipal Code To Comply with AB 2188 Regarding Expedited 
Permit Processing for Small Residential Roof Top Solar Systems (OP) 
 

Opened/Closed 
PH Approved 
NF/RA (3-0-2) 
SH/BN  

RECOMMENDATION: Council conduct a public hearing, receive public 
testimony, and by motion adopt Ordinance adding section 17.94 to Title 17 
of the Kerman Municipal Code to comply with AB 2188 regarding expedited 
permitting procedures for small residential roof top solar. 

 
 
 
Ord 15-03 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreements for Utility Service for 322 S. 
Goldenrod Avenue and 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue (JJ) 

Approved 
RA/NF (3-0-2) 
SH/BN  

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt the resolution approving 
the Agreements for Utility Service for David and Arlene Corneliuz at 322 S. 
Goldenrod Avenue and Reggie and Stella Trevino at 348 S. Goldenrod 
Avenue. 

Res 15 -53 

B. SUBJECT: Addition of the Reconstruction of Manor Drive to the California 
Avenue Reconstruction Project (JJ) 

Approved 
RA/NF (3-0-2) 
SH/BN 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving a 
change order to add the reconstruction of Manor Drive to the scope of the 
California Avenue Reconstruction Project and authorize the Public Works 
Director to sign the change order. 

Res 15 -54 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

7. CLOSED SESSION  

A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 - Public Employee 
Appointment/Employment Title: City Manager 

No CS due to 
quorum 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN  

8. ADJOURNMENT 7.04 p.m. 
Approved 
RA/NF (3-0-2) 
SH/BN 

 

7



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue  
September 29, 2015 

8:30 a.m. 
 

 

 
 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 

 
I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date 
above written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 

         Date: September 30, 2015 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 
 

Present: Mayor Hill (SH), Nijjer (BN), Rhonda Armstrong (RA), Gary Yep (GY), Fox (NF) 
Also Present: City Attorney Cantú 

Voting: Yes, 
No, Absent 
(Abstain if 
needed) 

1. Call to order. 8:35 a.m. all 
present 
except NF 

2. Public Hearing: Consideration of Interim Urgency Ordinance Extending for an 
Additional 120 Days A Moratorium on the Establishment of Businesses 
Offering massages 
 

3. Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 

Open Closed 
PH 
Approved 
RA/GY  
(4-0-1) NF 

A. Public Employee Appointment Title: City Manager 8:40 a.m. 
GY recused 
(applicant)  
 
8:45 NF 
arrived 
 

Reconvene  2:12 p.m. 
No report-
able action 
 
Call for 
special mtg. 
10/1/15 
 

Adjourn 2:13 p.m. 
BN/RA  
(4-0-1) GY 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

8



 
MINUTES 

KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING 

Kerman City Hall 
850 S. Madera Avenue  

October 1, 2015 
8:30 a.m. 

 
 
 

 
Present: Mayor Hill (SH), Nijjer (BN), Rhonda Armstrong (RA)  
Absent: Gary Yep (GY), Fox (NF) 
 

Voting: Yes, 
No, Absent 
(Abstain if 
needed) 

4. Call to order. 8:35 a.m. all 
present 
except NF/GY 

5. Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 8:36 p.m. 

B. Public Employee Appointment Title: City Manager  

C. Conference with Labor Negotiators City Designated Representatives: 
Mayor Hill and Councilmember Armstrong Regarding Unrepresented 
Employee Position: City Manager Candidate 

 

Reconvene  10:05 a.m. 
No reportable 
action. 

Adjourn 10:06 a.m. 
RA/BN (3-0-2) 
NF/GY 

 
 
 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 

 
I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date 
above written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 

         Date: October 2, 2015 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 
 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

9



10



11



12



Accounts Payable

User:

Printed: 

jalvarez

10/1/2015  4:48 PM

Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date

Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

10021 ALERT O LITE 09/15/20157161
0446382-IN PROTEUS WORKERS WATER COOLERS/CUPS  107.32

0446446-IN PROTEUS WORKERS ORANGE VEST  17.32

 124.64Total for Check Number 7161:

10026 ALL STATE POLICE EQUIP. CO INC 09/15/20157162
0092633-IN PD-EXPLORER PROGRAM SUPPLIES  634.85

0092686-IN PD-EXPLORER PROGRAM SUPPLIES-GUN HOLSTERS  462.55

 1,097.40Total for Check Number 7162:

10504 AUTOZONE 09/15/20157163
5324395716 WTR-TOOL BAG  32.45

5324395716 SWR-TOOL BAG  32.45

 64.90Total for Check Number 7163:

10883 CAREY & COMPANY LTD/RESCUE ESSENTIALS09/15/20157164
30809 PD-TRAUMA BANDAGES/CHEST SEALS/EMER CLOTHING KNIFE  1,034.95

 1,034.95Total for Check Number 7164:

10082 CARROT-TOP INDUSTRIES 09/15/20157165
27622700 VAR-US & POW/MIA PARK FLAGS  238.25

 238.25Total for Check Number 7165:

10891 CENTRAL VALLEY ASPHALT 09/15/20157166
09112015 WTR-WATER METER RENTAL REFUND  467.60

 467.60Total for Check Number 7166:

10452 CITY OF FRESNO WMD 09/15/20157167
K082615 WTR/SWR-LAB ANALYSIS  30.00

K082615 WTR/SWR-LAB ANALYSIS  73.50

K090215 WTR/SWR-LAB ANALYSIS  75.00

K090215 WTR/SWR-LAB ANALYSIS  90.00

 268.50Total for Check Number 7167:

10106 CONSOLIDATED EDISON SOLUTIONS 09/15/20157168
2645069 SWR-SOLAR POWER 8/1/15-9/1/15  13,026.55

 13,026.55Total for Check Number 7168:

10826 CROWN SERVICES CO 09/15/20157169
602730 CS-PORTA POTTIES/SINKS  102.82

 102.82Total for Check Number 7169:

10128 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 09/15/20157170

Page 1AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

13

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10021
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10026
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10504
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10883
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10082
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10891
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10452
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10106
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10826
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10128


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

113627 PD-JULY LIVE SCAN, PRINTS VALDOVINOS, RAIGOZA, BEYE  492.00

113627 PD-JULY LIVE SCAN, PRINTS VALDOVINOS, RAIGOZA, BEYE  153.00

 645.00Total for Check Number 7170:

10713 DIAMOND LOCKSMITHS 09/15/20157171
8224 CS-KERKCHOFF BOOTH NEW KEYS  38.39

 38.39Total for Check Number 7171:

10654 DIVINE DESSERTS 09/15/20157172
549537 CC-SEPT COUNCIL MEETING REFRESHMENTS  30.00

 30.00Total for Check Number 7172:

10151 EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS 09/15/20157173
306597 SWR-PVC PIPE  42.77

 42.77Total for Check Number 7173:

10491 FORENSIC NURSE SPECIALISTS, INC. 09/15/20157174
2039 PD-ASSAULT EXAM 15-1611  900.00

 900.00Total for Check Number 7174:

10162 FRESNO COUNTY TREASURER 09/15/20157175
SO12925 PD-DISPATCH SERV SEPT 2015  17,427.30

SO12926 PD-AUG 2015 RMS/JMS/CAD ACCESS FEES  167.00

 17,594.30Total for Check Number 7175:

10175 G & K SERVICES, INC 09/15/20157176
09092015 VAR-UNIFORM MATS & SUPPLIES-SOLID WASTE  1.89

09092015 VAR-UNIFORM MATS & SUPPLIES-BUILDING  4.00

09092015 VAR-UNIFORM MATS & SUPPLIES-REC ADMIN  33.72

09092015 VAR-UNIFORM MATS & SUPPLIES-UNIFORMS  20.28

09092015 VAR-UNIFORM MATS & SUPPLIES-BLDG PARKS OPERATIONS  1,094.44

09092015 VAR-UNIFORM MATS & SUPPLIES-WATER OPERATIONS  69.06

09092015 VAR-UNIFORM MATS & SUPPLIES-SEWER OPERATIONS  62.66

09092015 VAR-UNIFORM MATS & SUPPLIES-STORM DRAIN  10.17

09092015 VAR-UNIFORM MATS & SUPPLIES-VEHICLES  15.85

09092015 VAR-UNIFORM MATS & SUPPLIES-LANDSCAPE & LIGHTING  34.74

09092015 VAR-UNIFORM MATS & SUPPLIES-STREETS-ARTICLE VIII  11.44

09092015 VAR-UNIFORM MATS & SUPPLIES-STREETS-MEASURE C  58.71

 1,416.96Total for Check Number 7176:

10177 GAMETIME 09/15/20157177
PJI-0012382 CS-B STREET PARK PLAY STRUCTURE -EQUIP ONLY  31,267.73

 31,267.73Total for Check Number 7177:

10191 H & J CHEVROLET INC 09/15/20157178
CVW20787 V/E-PARTS & SUPPLIES  105.02

CVW20952-2 V/E-PARTS & SUPPLIES  425.37

CVW21006 V/E-PARTS & SUPPLIES  8.13

CVW21021 V/E-PARTS & SUPPLIES  328.79

CVW21058 V/E-PARTS & SUPPLIES  233.34

 1,100.65Total for Check Number 7178:

10194 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD 09/15/20157179

Page 2AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

14

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10713
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10654
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10151
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10491
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10162
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10175
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10177
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10191
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10194


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

E450520 WTR-METER ADAPTERS/COUPLINGS  456.82

 456.82Total for Check Number 7179:

10890 HILBERS INC 09/15/20157180
09112015 WTR-REFUND ON WATER METER RENTAL  950.00

 950.00Total for Check Number 7180:

10205 INDEPENDENT STATIONERS 09/15/20157181
IN-000556129 REC-PAPER FOR FLYERS  23.92

 23.92Total for Check Number 7181:

10228 J'S COMMUNICATIONS, INC 09/15/20157182
N15-1325 PD-MOTOROLA PORTABLE RADIO  947.94

 947.94Total for Check Number 7182:

10234 KERMAN FLORAL & GIFTS 09/15/20157183
8954 CC-CUBILLOS THANK YOU  72.51

 72.51Total for Check Number 7183:

10239 KERWEST NEWSPAPERS 09/15/20157184
40290 CC-PH NOTICE SOLAR ROOFTOPS  72.00

40318 BPO-PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 9/28/15  99.00

 171.00Total for Check Number 7184:

10885 KOYOTE PRODUCTIONS 09/15/20157185
000035 REC-DJ DEPOSIT REFUND  100.00

 100.00Total for Check Number 7185:

10886 LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES 09/15/20157186
INV-021150 CS-PLAY STRUCTURE FOR KATEYS KIDS PARK  5,516.58

 5,516.58Total for Check Number 7186:

10678 MAC'S EQUIPMENT INC 09/15/20157187
09112015 V/E-SUPPLIES 2 INV <$50  62.69

128289 V/E-PARTS & SUPPLIES  437.77

128542 PD-SUPPLIES 1 INV <$50  41.47

128729 V/E-PARTS & SUPPLIES  65.26

128835 V/E-PARTS & SUPPLIES  340.78

128863 V/E-RETURN INV #128835 -108.21

128864 V/E-PARTS & SUPPLIES  90.19

128911 PD-PARTS & SUPPLIES  129.47

128911 V/E-PARTS & SUPPLIES  129.47

 1,188.89Total for Check Number 7187:

10260 METRO UNIFORM & ACCESSORIES 09/15/20157188
120913 PD-SHOULDER PATCHES  675.32

 675.32Total for Check Number 7188:

10261 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL, INC 09/15/20157189
08312015 SWA-AUGUST SW CHARGES  89,673.09

08312015 SWA-CITY PORTION FOR AUGUST 2015 -17,934.62

08312015 SWA-ROLL OFF/FRANCHISE FEES -616.40

Page 3AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

15

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10890
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10205
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10228
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10234
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10239
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10885
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10886
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10678
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10260
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10261


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 71,122.07Total for Check Number 7189:

10269 MOUNTAIN VALLEY PEST CONTROL 09/15/20157190
09112015 BPO-PEST CONTROL SCOUT HUT & HAR FEST BOOTHS  150.00

 150.00Total for Check Number 7190:

10889 LEE NESS 09/15/20157191
09092015 PD-3 DAY LUNCH SUBSISTENCE  39.00

 39.00Total for Check Number 7191:

10286 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC 09/15/20157192
09112015 V/E-SUPPLIES 4 INV <$50  92.86

09112015 PD-SUPPLIES 2 INV <$50  66.98

3921-227500 EQUIP-DATABASE UPDATE AC MACHINE  194.79

3921-229340 V/E / PD- THROTTLE POSITION SENSOR #1401  58.37

3921-229463 V/E / PD-CENTER CONSOLE DARE CAR  50.85

3921-229649 V/E / PD-SPOT LIGHT BULBS PD CARS  106.98

3921-229727 SWR-SUPPLIES 1 INV <$50  21.62

3921-229834 V/E-STARTER FOR $1398  208.63

3921-229898 V/E PD-SUPPLIES 1 INV <$50  22.68

3921-230499 V/E-STRUT/SHOCK FOR #1402  83.94

3921-230556 PD-LIGHTING CONTROL MODULE #1421  335.18

3921-230566 V/E-SUPPLIES 1 INV <$50  9.46

3921-230649 V/E-CREDIT ON INV #3921-229834 -10.82

3921-230650 V/E-INSPECTION CAMERA FOR SHOP  129.86

3921-230729 V/E PD-CREDIT ON INV #3921-220556 -81.17

3921-230871 SWR/WTR-SUPPLIES  8.11

3921-230871 SWR/WTR-SUPPLIES  8.11

3921-231833 EQUIP-SUPPLIES 1 INV <$50  49.77

3921-231846 EQUIP-CREDIT ON INV #3921-231833 -49.77

3921-231976 V/E-CREDIT/RETURN -136.67

 1,169.76Total for Check Number 7192:

10282 OFFICE DEPOT 09/15/20157193
787784214001 BPO-OFFICE SUPPLIES  42.00

787784214001 BPO-OFFICE SUPPLIES  42.00

7940480833001 PD-OFFICE SUPPLIES  131.62

7940480976001 PD-OFFICE SUPPLIES  65.66

 281.28Total for Check Number 7193:

10289 P.G.& E. 09/15/20157194
2881141119-9 CS-MONTHLY FUEL TRANSIT BUS  169.93

3920400666-0 STRT-MONTHLY UTILITY SER 7/30/15-8/28/15  3,943.03

4055166878-9 V/E-INSTALLMENT LOAN LED  1,207.83

4055166878-9 V/E-MONTHLY UTILITY SER 7/29/15-8/27/15  1,446.69

4939626163-5 V/E-MONTHLY UTILITY SER  1,131.94

5467738309-0 WTR/SWR/SD-MONTHLY UTILITY SER 7/29/15-8/27/15  27,826.61

5467738309-0 WTR/SWR/SD-MONTHLY UTILITY SER 7/29/15-8/27/15  171.51

5467738309-0 WTR/SWR/SD-MONTHLY UTILITY SER 7/29/15-8/27/15  19.71

5467738309-0 WTR/SWR/SD-MONTHLY UTILITY SER 7/29/15-8/27/15  44.37

5647279811-8 PD-MONTHLY UTILITIES AUG 2015  2,374.15

 38,335.77Total for Check Number 7194:

10305 PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER 09/15/20157195
800909001594642 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER  40.59

Page 4AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

16

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10269
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10889
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10286
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10282
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10289
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10305


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

800909001594642 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER  30.00

800909001594642 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER  0.97

800909001594642 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER  19.89

800909001594642 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER  13.04

800909001594642 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER  18.02

800909001594642 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER  391.48

800909001594642 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER  4.85

800909001594642 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER  72.82

800909001594642 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER  23.77

800909001594642 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER  1.20

800909001594642 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER  3.88

800909001594642 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER  8.58

800909001594642 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER  233.80

800909001594642 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER  137.00

 999.89Total for Check Number 7195:

10315 QUINN COMPANY 09/15/20157196
NF05233 WTR-EMERGENCY REPAIR WELL #12  1,324.09

 1,324.09Total for Check Number 7196:

10316 R. G. EQUIPMENT 09/15/20157197
97453 V/E-PARTS FOR TORO MOWER  308.44

 308.44Total for Check Number 7197:

10887 RALPH C KNAPP 09/15/20157198
103 WTR-HIGH EFF TOILET REBATE  100.00

 100.00Total for Check Number 7198:

10322 RICHARD A. BLAK, PHD 09/15/20157199
09092015 PD-POST PSYCHOLOGICAL CORNELL  350.00

 350.00Total for Check Number 7199:

10327 SAFETY KLEEN CORP 09/15/20157200
67694113 V/E-AQUEOUS PARTS WASHER SOLUTION  284.11

 284.11Total for Check Number 7200:

10888 SAN DIEGO HUMANE SOCIETY 09/15/20157201
09092015 AAC-BASIC ANIMAL LE ACADEMY K GODFREY  375.00

 375.00Total for Check Number 7201:

10329 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY AIR POLL 09/15/20157202
C237668 SWR-PERMIT #C-3947-2-0 & #C3947-3-0  625.00

C237673 WTR-PERMIT #C-4369-1-0 WELL #15  252.00

C237680 PD-PERMIT #C-6994-1-0  252.00

C237708 WTR-PERMIT #C-8058-1-0 WELL #9A  252.00

C237973 WTR/SWR-PERMIT #C-4009-1-0  112.00

C237973 WTR/SWR-PERMIT #C-4009-2-0 & #C-4009-3-0  224.00

 1,717.00Total for Check Number 7202:

10338 SMITH AUTO 09/15/20157203
164983 V/E-SUPPLIES & PARTS  92.29

171148 V/E-SUPPLIES & PARTS  75.70

175141 V/E-SUPPLIES & PARTS  19.48

188681 PARKS-SUPPLIES & PARTS  0.96

Page 5AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

17

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10315
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10316
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10887
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10322
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10327
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10888
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10329
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10338


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 188.43Total for Check Number 7203:

10754 SUPPLYWORKS 09/15/20157204
5147877-00 CTC-JANITORIAL SUPPLIES  530.66

5147885-00 CTC-JANITORIAL SUPPLIES  110.97

 641.63Total for Check Number 7204:

10354 T & T PAVEMENT MARKINGS 09/15/20157205
2015617 STRTC-5 GAL EASY KOTE  67.64

 67.64Total for Check Number 7205:

10357 TAYLOR MADE IRRIGATION 09/15/20157206
10641 LLD-SUPPLIES  5.16

10641 STRTC-SUPPLIES  5.15

10642 STRTC-SUPPLIES  148.70

 159.01Total for Check Number 7206:

10391 VALLEY FARM SUPPLY STORES 09/15/20157207
09112015 PARKS- SUPPLIES 6 INV <$50  91.40

09112015 WTR- SUPPLIES 8 INV <$50  54.20

09112015 SWR- SUPPLIES 10 INV <$50  138.87

09112015 V/E- SUPPLIES 2 INV <$50  36.78

09112015 V/E- SUPPLIES 4 INV <$50  98.70

09112015 LLD- SUPPLIES 3 INV <$50  51.87

09112015 STRTC- SUPPLIES 6 INV <$50  100.83

OFF1K105896 WTR-SUPPLIES  105.08

OFF1K106020 PARKS-WEED EATER HEAD  52.48

OFF1K106061 STRTC-DRIP LINE SUPPLIES & PARTS  71.22

OFF2K105462 SWR-SUPPLIES  53.08

OFF2K105536 LLD- SUPPLIES  72.62

OFF2K105536 LLD- SUPPLIES  72.62

 999.75Total for Check Number 7207:

10399 VETERINARY MEDICAL CENTER 09/15/20157208
212306 AAC-1 EUTHANASIA OF ANIMAL  22.40

212314 AAC-4 EUTHANASIA OF ANIMAL  76.40

 98.80Total for Check Number 7208:

10406 WEST HILLS OIL, INC 09/15/20157209
48706 V/E-J DUNN FUEL ACCT#12532  391.24

48707 V/E-FUEL AUG 2015 ACCT#12533  4,591.37

48707 V/E-FUEL AUG 2015 ACCT#12533  198.42

 5,181.03Total for Check Number 7209:

10884 WESTERN HOMES 09/15/20157210
BP14-0290 BPO-C & D REFUND 15639 W E ST  663.25

 663.25Total for Check Number 7210:

10412 XEROX CORPORATION 09/15/20157211
081160011 WTR/SWR-COPIER LEASE AGREEMENT AUG 2015  83.31

081160011 WTR/SWR-COPIER LEASE AGREEMENT AUG 2015  83.31

 166.62Total for Check Number 7211:

Page 6AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

18

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10754
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10354
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10357
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10391
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10399
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10406
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10884
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10412


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

10413 YAMABE & HORN ENGINEERING 09/15/20157212
33890 GOLDENROD RAILROAD CROSSING  890.00

33891 WHITESBRIDGE & VINELAND TRAFFIC SIGNAL - CMAQ  180.00

33892 GENERAL ENGINEERING  997.50

33893 WELL NO 18 PRODUCTION WELL  120.00

33894 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL EXPANSION REVIEW  1,312.50

33895 DOUBLE L MHP WATER SER/WELL 18 SDWSRF GRANT  900.00

33896 VINELAND AVE WIDENING  2,207.50

33897 UPRR PEDESTRIAN & BICYCLE TRAIL  770.00

33898 PROP 84 WATER METER PROJECT  4,372.50

33899 CALIFORNIA & MAY RECONSTRUCTION - FEDERAL  300.00

33900 KERMAN CROSSINGS PARCEL C  357.50

33901 CDBG KATEYS KIDS PARK  547.50

33902 CDBG SOROPTIMIST  367.50

33903 CHROMIUM 6 MCL SUPPORT  367.50

33904 CALIFORNIA AVE RECONSTRUCTION - LOCAL  2,787.50

33905 SR2S PEDESTRIAN SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS  215.00

33906 2015 LLMD ASSESSMENT  210.00

33907 CALIFORNIA AVE SIDEWALK - DEL NORTE TO FIRST  1,482.50

33908 GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ENGINEERING SUPPORT  420.00

33909 2015-16 CALTRANS DBE REPORTING  971.25

33910 SPR 15-03 VALLEY HEALTH PARKING LOT ADDITION  140.00

33911 GUERRA UTILITY AGREEMENT  157.50

 20,073.75Total for Check Number 7212:

10893 Z - ADELA RAMIREZ 09/15/20157213
00010425 CTC-DEPOSIT REFUND 8/1/15  400.00

 400.00Total for Check Number 7213:

10896 Z - JAVIER RODRIGUEZ 09/15/20157214
00024484 CTC-DEPOSIT REFUND  400.00

 400.00Total for Check Number 7214:

10736 Z - MAYRA HERNANDEZ 09/15/20157215
00000597 CTC-DEPOSIT REFUND  100.00

 100.00Total for Check Number 7215:

10737 Z - NANCY MALDONADO 09/15/20157216
00000652 CTC-DEPOSIT REFUND  100.00

 100.00Total for Check Number 7216:

10894 Z - PATRICIA RAMIREZ 09/15/20157217
00020016 CTC-DEPOSIT REFUND 9/5/15  100.00

 100.00Total for Check Number 7217:

10892 Z - TINA McCLURE 09/15/20157218
09152015 AAC-CAT TRAP DEPOSIT REIMBURSEMENT  40.00

 40.00Total for Check Number 7218:

10889 LEE NESS 09/15/20157219
09102015 FIN-KUSD TRAINING REIMBURSEMENT  132.23

 132.23Total for Check Number 7219:

Page 7AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

19

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10413
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10893
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10896
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10736
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10737
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10894
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10892
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10889


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 225,632.94Total for 9/15/2015:

10019 AFLAC 09/22/20157220
811534 HR-SEPT EMPLOYEE VOLUNTARY INS  184.56

 184.56Total for Check Number 7220:

10617 C.A. REDING CO., INC. 09/22/20157221
346099 PD-JULY BILLING FOR COPIES 7/13/15 TO 8/12/15  104.41

348724 BPO-LANIER/MP C3503 COPIER  108.22

 212.63Total for Check Number 7221:

10104 COMCAST 09/22/20157222
815550021000359 TECH-TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 9/14/15-10/13/15  168.92

 168.92Total for Check Number 7222:

10115 CSJVRMA 09/22/20157223
RMA-2016-0082 VAR-2ND QTR WOKERS COMP DEPOSIT  59,695.00

RMA-2016-0082 VAR-2ND QTR LIAB DEP CRIME & TRAVEL  12,142.80

RMA-2016-0082 VAR-2ND QTR LIAB DEP CRIME & TRAVEL  4,047.60

RMA-2016-0082 VAR-2ND QTR LIAB DEP CRIME & TRAVEL  3,103.16

RMA-2016-0082 VAR-2ND QTR LIAB DEP CRIME & TRAVEL  1,349.20

RMA-2016-0082 VAR-2ND QTR LIAB DEP CRIME & TRAVEL  539.68

RMA-2016-0082 VAR-2ND QTR LIAB DEP CRIME & TRAVEL  3,777.76

RMA-2016-0082 VAR-2ND QTR LIAB DEP CRIME & TRAVEL  404.76

RMA-2016-0082 VAR-2ND QTR LIAB DEP CRIME & TRAVEL  1,619.04

 86,679.00Total for Check Number 7223:

10128 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 09/22/20157224
119336 PD-AUG LIVE SCAN PRINTS  273.00

 273.00Total for Check Number 7224:

10151 EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS 09/22/20157225
9835768 CS-WOVEN FABRIC STAPLES PVC DRAIN  433.05

 433.05Total for Check Number 7225:

10898 KYLE GODFREY 09/22/20157226
9172015 AAC-10 DAYS SUBSISTENCE BASIC ANIMAL LAW ENFORCEMENT ACADEMY  380.00

 380.00Total for Check Number 7226:

10710 HACH COMPANY 09/22/20157227
9569378 SWR-ALKALINE LOZIDE 50PK X 4  56.60

9569378 SWR-FREE CHLORINE REAGENT 50PK X 4  82.60

9569378 SWR-TAX/FREIGHT  29.24

 168.44Total for Check Number 7227:

10250 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE 09/22/20157228
09172015 FIN-HIRING PROCESS TRAINING  60.00

10072015 FIN-WEBINAR EVAL DOCUMENTATION & DISC  60.00

 120.00Total for Check Number 7228:

10282 OFFICE DEPOT 09/22/20157230
790078547001 WTR/SWR-PENS AND FOLDERS  16.93

Page 8AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

20

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10019
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10617
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10104
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10115
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10128
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10151
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10898
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10710
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10250
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10282


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

790078547001 WTR/SWR-PENS AND FOLDERS  16.93

792027520001 PD-OFFICE SUPPLIES  232.35

 266.21Total for Check Number 7230:

10283 OFFICE DEPOT CREDIT ACCOUNT 09/22/20157231
9172015 CS-OFFICE SUPPLIES  45.33

 45.33Total for Check Number 7231:

10285 ONTRAC 09/22/20157232
8280749 BPO-PLAN CHECK OVERNIGHT DELIVERY FEES  73.90

 73.90Total for Check Number 7232:

10314 QUILL CORPORATION 09/22/20157233
54291 WTR/SWR-FOLDERS  5.02

54291 WTR/SWR-FOLDERS  5.01

54292 WTR/SWR-PENCILS AND PAPER  51.39

54292 WTR/SWR-PENCILS AND PAPER  51.38

 112.80Total for Check Number 7233:

10331 SEBASTIAN 09/22/20157234
62497 FIN-PHONE SYSTEM DOWN  150.00

 150.00Total for Check Number 7234:

10420 SPRINT 09/22/20157235
622685312-166 MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICE 8/12/15-9/11/15  20.54

622685312-166 MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICE 8/12/15-9/11/15  20.55

622685312-166 MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICE 8/12/15-9/11/15  150.68

622685312-166 MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICE 8/12/15-9/11/15  27.40

622685312-166 MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICE 8/12/15-9/11/15  20.55

622685312-166 MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICE 8/12/15-9/11/15  44.52

622685312-166 MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICE 8/12/15-9/11/15  75.34

622685312-166 MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICE 8/12/15-9/11/15  68.49

622685312-166 MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICE 8/12/15-9/11/15  23.97

622685312-166 MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICE 8/12/15-9/11/15  29.11

622685312-166 MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICE 8/12/15-9/11/15  123.29

 604.44Total for Check Number 7235:

10644 US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE 09/22/20157236
286902051 BPO-LANIER/MP C3503 COPIER LEASE  149.35

 149.35Total for Check Number 7236:

10897 Z - ESMERALDA BORREGO 09/22/20157237
9152015 AAC-CAT TRAP DEPOSIT REIMBURSEMENT  40.00

 40.00Total for Check Number 7237:

10895 Z - MARIA GARCIA 09/22/20157238
00009606 CTC-DEPOSIT REFUND 9/5/15  400.00

 400.00Total for Check Number 7238:

 90,461.63Total for 9/22/2015:

10872 RON MADRUGA 09/24/20157239

Page 9AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

21

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10283
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10285
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10314
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10331
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10644
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10897
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10895
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10872


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

09242015 PD-10 DAYS SUBSISTENCE CRIM INV INST CORE COURSE 9/28 TO 10/9  80.00

 80.00Total for Check Number 7239:

 80.00Total for 9/24/2015:

10014 ADMINISTRATIVE SOLUTIONS, INC 09/29/20157240
18613 HR-OCT DENTAL CLAIMS FUNDING  4,238.61

30847 HR-OCT BLUE SHIELD PLAN ADMIN  765.00

84345 HR-OCT SEC 125 PLAN ADMIN  90.00

9242015 HR-OCT EMPLOYER FLEX PLAN  10,000.00

9242015 HR-SEPT SEC 125 EMPLOYEE CONT  1,760.86

 16,854.47Total for Check Number 7240:

10904 ALICIA ALVAREZ 09/29/20157241
00034902 CTC-DEPOSIT REFUND SCOUT HUT 9/26/15  100.00

 100.00Total for Check Number 7241:

10901 AMERICAN RENAL MANAGEMENT LLC09/29/20157242
BP14-0232 BPO-C & D REFUND KERMAN DIALYSIS SHELL BLDG 14945 W WHITESBRIDGE  1,708.75

 1,708.75Total for Check Number 7242:

10039 AT&T 09/29/20157243
092015 PD-T-1 LINE 9/10/15 TO 10/09/15  271.33

 271.33Total for Check Number 7243:

10766 JOSEPH BLOHM 09/29/20157244
10132015 PD-2 DAYS SUBSISTENCE CHIEF BLOHM CPOA  76.00

 76.00Total for Check Number 7244:

10054 BLUE SHIELD OF CALIFORNIA 09/29/20157245
152590003935 HR-OCT MEDICAL COVERAGE  26,436.05

152590003935 HR-OCT COBRA COVERAGE  288.61

 26,724.66Total for Check Number 7245:

10903 GLORIA BRAMBILA DE ESQUIVEL 09/29/20157246
00021964 CTC-DEPOSIT REFUND CTC 9/19/15  400.00

 400.00Total for Check Number 7246:

10617 C.A. REDING CO., INC. 09/29/20157247
349936 PD-AUG BILLING FOR COPIES 8/13/15 TO 9/12/15 LANIER MP 4503  125.07

 125.07Total for Check Number 7247:

10905 LANDI CENTINO 09/29/20157248
00031632 CTC-RENTAL REFUND LIONS PARK 9/13/15  85.00

 85.00Total for Check Number 7248:

10103 COLONIAL LIFE 09/29/20157249
3420205-1001649 HR-SEPT EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTION  515.60

 515.60Total for Check Number 7249:

Page 10AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

22

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10014
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10904
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10901
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10039
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10766
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10054
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10903
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10617
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10905
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10103


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

10105 COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER 09/29/20157250
083115 PD-1 BLOOD DRAW 15-1784  175.00

 175.00Total for Check Number 7250:

10826 CROWN SERVICES CO 09/29/20157251
637761 CS-PORTA POTTIES/SINKS  102.82

 102.82Total for Check Number 7251:

10118 DAPPER TIRE 09/29/20157252
42366424 VE REP-TIRES #1476  360.23

 360.23Total for Check Number 7252:

10902 JASMINE DAVILA 09/29/20157253
00011798 CTC-DEPOSIT REFUND CTC 9/16/15  400.00

 400.00Total for Check Number 7253:

10124 DELRAY TIRE & RETREADING 09/29/20157254
478495 PD REP-TIRES FOR #1466 AND STOCK  463.19

 463.19Total for Check Number 7254:

UB*00194 GURPREET DHALIWAL 09/29/20157255
Refund Check  30.93

 30.93Total for Check Number 7255:

10618 DISCOVERY DOOR DISTRIBUTION 09/29/20157256
SO-3102 BLDG-KEYS  35.92

 35.92Total for Check Number 7256:

10151 EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS 09/29/20157257
340590 LLD-SPRINKLER STATION CONTROLLER  137.99

353572 PARKS-BATTERIES, BUBBLERS, ADAPTERS  124.76

353572 LLD-BATTERIES, BUBBLERS, ADAPTERS  124.75

 387.50Total for Check Number 7257:

10153 FACTORY MOTOR PARTS CO. 09/29/20157258
43-369589 V/E REP-CREDIT ON ACCOUNT -35.33

43-Z02058 V/E REP-BATTERIES #1426 #1444  252.84

 217.51Total for Check Number 7258:

10154 FASTENAL COMPANY 09/29/20157259
CAFR253333 LLD-SUPPLIES 6 LINE ITEMS <$50  42.40

CAFR253333 PARKS-SUPPLIES 5 LINE ITEMS <$50  63.07

CAFR253333 PARKS-4 PAIRS LARGE GLOVES  55.16

CAFR253333 LLD-9V BATTERIES X7  77.50

CAFR253333 VE SUPPL-SUPPLIES 1 LINE ITEM <$50  11.18

CAFR253709 PARKS-EYE PROTECTION  10.53

 259.84Total for Check Number 7259:

10158 FRANKLIN MILLER 09/29/20157260
27678 SWR-2 BALL BEARINGS FOR GRINDER WWTP  139.71

 139.71Total for Check Number 7260:

Page 11AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

23

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10105
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10826
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10118
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10902
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10124
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00194
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10618
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10151
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10153
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10154
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10158


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

10162 FRESNO COUNTY TREASURER 09/29/20157261
SO12906 PD-AUG PRISONER PROCESSING SERVICE 2 PRISONER'S PROCESSED @$24EA  48.00

 48.00Total for Check Number 7261:

10168 FRESNO NETWORKS 09/29/20157262
AT19438 TECH-MONTHLY TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICES  2,540.10

 2,540.10Total for Check Number 7262:

10185 GRAINGER 09/29/20157263
9809771455 CS-REPLACEMENT LIGHT LENS @LIONS PARK  126.52

 126.52Total for Check Number 7263:

10767 IDESIGN CUSTOM SCREEN PRINTING 09/29/20157264
09202015 REC-YOUTH TENNIS T-SHIRTS  606.00

 606.00Total for Check Number 7264:

10205 INDEPENDENT STATIONERS 09/29/20157265
IN-000559499 CTC-CTC PRINTER TONER, BATTERIES  201.99

IN-000559499 CTC-CARD & PCLIP HOLDER, BATTERIES  21.92

IN-000560431 CTC-11X17 LAMINATING POUCH  29.98

 253.89Total for Check Number 7265:

10238 KERMAN UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST 09/29/20157266
150052-R CS-PG&E BALLFIELD LIGHTS GOLDENROD 6/15/15-6/30/15  683.14

160061 CS-PG&E BALLFIELD LIGHTS GOLDENROD 7/1/15-7/14/15  683.14

 1,366.28Total for Check Number 7266:

10899 LENS LAWNMOWER SERVICE INC 09/29/20157267
544838 EQUIP-SHARPEN BLADES X3 #1440  450.00

 450.00Total for Check Number 7267:

10250 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE 09/29/20157268
10152015 FIN-WEBINAR HR EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP  60.00

 60.00Total for Check Number 7268:

10259 MES VISION 09/29/20157269
152513088101 HR-OCT VISION PREMIUM  652.03

 652.03Total for Check Number 7269:

10260 METRO UNIFORM & ACCESSORIES 09/29/20157270
120164 PD-EXPLORER UNIFORM E PEREZ  140.48

12191 PD-EXPLORER UNIFORM MARTINEZ  127.49

 267.97Total for Check Number 7270:

10907 MICHAELS CUSTOM WOODWORK INC 09/29/20157271
785 CS-50% DEPOSIT LOG SHELTERS X4 KATEYS KIDS PARK  11,900.00

 11,900.00Total for Check Number 7271:

10269 MOUNTAIN VALLEY PEST CONTROL 09/29/20157272
NJ#8 CS-PEST CONTROL SPRAY SENIOR CENTER  75.00

Page 12AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

24

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10162
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10168
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10185
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10767
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10205
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10238
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10899
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10250
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10259
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10260
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10907
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10269


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 75.00Total for Check Number 7272:

10272 MUTUAL OF OMAHA 09/29/20157273
000424134065 HR-OCT LTD INS EMPLOYEE  404.61

000424134065 HR-OCT LTD INS EMPLOYER  404.61

000424134065 HR-OCT LIFE INSURANCE  364.58

000424134065 HR-OCT VOLUNTARY LIFE  1,109.05

 2,282.85Total for Check Number 7273:

10273 NAFFA INTERNATIONAL INC 09/29/20157274
23567 BPO-PLAN CHECK FEES 8/1/15-8/31/15  3,997.65

 3,997.65Total for Check Number 7274:

10721 CHRIS NELSON 09/29/20157275
10132015 PD-2 DAYS SUBSISTENCE C NELSON CPOA  76.00

 76.00Total for Check Number 7275:

10282 OFFICE DEPOT 09/29/20157276
791518928-001 CS-COPY PAPER FOR FLYERS  25.97

791519561-001 CS-PAPER FOR FLYERS, STAPLES, FOLDERS  27.61

791519561-002 CS-BINDER CLIPS  4.97

792706892001 WTR/SWR-BINDERS  15.94

792706892001 WTR/SWR-BINDERS  15.94

 90.43Total for Check Number 7276:

10289 P.G.& E. 09/29/20157277
6206788690-3 CS-MONTHLY ELECTRICITY & GAS 8/9/15 TO 9/8/15  1,481.69

6206788690-3 CS-MONTHLY ELECTRICITY & GAS 8/9/15 TO 9/8/15  226.01

6206788690-3 CS-MONTHLY ELECTRICITY & GAS 8/9/15 TO 9/8/15  3,308.75

6206788690-3 CS-MONTHLY ELECTRICITY & GAS 8/9/15 TO 9/8/15  1,017.17

6206788690-3 CS-MONTHLY ELECTRICITY & GAS 8/9/15 TO 9/8/15  100.00

9081203718-3 CS-MONTHLY UTILITIES KATEY'S KIDS PARK 7/23/15 TO 8/23/15  12.74

 6,146.36Total for Check Number 7277:

10305 PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER 09/29/20157278
8392672-SP15 VAR-QTR RENT POSTAGE MACHINES  466.30

8392672-SP15 VAR-QTR RENT POSTAGE MACHINES  466.30

8392672-SP15 VAR-QTR RENT POSTAGE MACHINES  279.78

8392672-SP15 VAR-QTR RENT POSTAGE MACHINES  233.14

 1,445.52Total for Check Number 7278:

10307 POSTAL ANNEX 09/29/20157279
PCK ID#41877 SWR-RETURNED GRINDER  19.59

 19.59Total for Check Number 7279:

10331 SEBASTIAN 09/29/20157280
58986 CS-TROUBLESHOOT ALARM PANEL  355.00

62502 CS-REPAIR/ADJUSTED HYDRAULIC DOOR  205.00

 560.00Total for Check Number 7280:

10346 STATE WATER RESOURCE CNTRL BRD 09/29/20157281
EW-1000808 WTR-SYS #10010018 ENFORCEMENT FEES 07/01/14-06/30/2015  45.90

Page 13AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

25

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10272
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10273
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10721
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10282
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10289
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10305
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10307
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10331
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10346


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 45.90Total for Check Number 7281:

10754 SUPPLYWORKS 09/29/20157282
5147877-01 CTC-JANITORIAL SUPPLIES  60.29

5147877-02 CTC-JANITORIAL SUPPLIES  75.77

 136.06Total for Check Number 7282:

10906 TAMARACK PEST CONTROL 09/29/20157283
0264449 CTC-PEST CONTROL SPRAY CTC  100.00

 100.00Total for Check Number 7283:

10355 TARGET SPECIALTY PRODUCTS 09/29/20157284
PI0327333 LLD-SPECTICLE & FINALE HERBICIDE  416.19

PI0327333 LLD-SPECTICLE & FINALE HERBICIDE  416.18

 832.37Total for Check Number 7284:

10371 TJ LAW & ASSOCIATES INVESTIGATIONS09/29/20157285
1205 PD-LAW ENFORCEMENT BACKGROUND R CORNELL  600.00

 600.00Total for Check Number 7285:

10386 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT 09/29/20157286
09222015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  90.91

09222015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  109.41

09222015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  272.20

09222015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  220.71

09222015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  62.65

09222015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  1,027.32

09222015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  150.00

09222015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  15.01

09222015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  16.05

09222015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  12.86

09222015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  16.03

09222015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  12.85

09222015 51050516000400 -1,710.55

 295.45Total for Check Number 7286:

10399 VETERINARY MEDICAL CENTER 09/29/20157287
212418 AAC-1 EUTHANASIA OF ANIMAL  22.40

212448 AAC-1 EUTHANASIA OF ANIMAL  22.40

 44.80Total for Check Number 7287:

10406 WEST HILLS OIL, INC 09/29/20157288
48920 V/E-FUEL SEP 1-15 1103.198 GALLONS  3,589.72

48920 V/E-FUEL B ARREDONDO TRNSPRT 43.239 GAL  140.80

 3,730.52Total for Check Number 7288:

10412 XEROX CORPORATION 09/29/20157289
081160012 CS-REC DEPT COPIES AUG 2015  258.68

 258.68Total for Check Number 7289:

10657 Z - MARTHA GALINDO 09/29/20157290
00031741 CTC-DEPOSIT REFUND SCOUT HUT 9/12/15  20.00

00034964 CTC-DEPOSIT REFUND SCOUT HUT 9/12/15  80.00

Page 14AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

26

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10754
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10906
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10355
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10371
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10386
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10399
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10406
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10412
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10657


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 100.00Total for Check Number 7290:

10892 Z - TINA McCLURE 09/29/20157291
30281 AAC-CAT TRAP DEPOSIT REIMBURSEMENT  10.00

 10.00Total for Check Number 7291:

 88,551.50Total for 9/29/2015:

UB*00195 LUIS AVALOS 10/01/20157292
Refund Check  147.37

 147.37Total for Check Number 7292:

UB*00204 JOHN BUCHNOFF II 10/01/20157293
Refund Check  178.97

Refund Check  7.56

Refund Check  1.03

Refund Check  9.17

Refund Check  8.55

Refund Check  0.83

Refund Check  0.28

 206.39Total for Check Number 7293:

UB*00200 REYNA CASILLAS 10/01/20157294
Refund Check  137.75

 137.75Total for Check Number 7294:

UB*00197 FRANK COUTO 10/01/20157295
Refund Check  9.37

 9.37Total for Check Number 7295:

UB*00208 CARLOS DOMINGUEZ 10/01/20157296
Refund Check  76.33

 76.33Total for Check Number 7296:

UB*00206 FIELD ASSET SERVICES LLC 10/01/20157297
Refund Check  150.00

Refund Check  4.25

Refund Check  2.54

Refund Check  6.72

Refund Check  0.47

Refund Check  0.29

 164.27Total for Check Number 7297:

UB*00205 KATHY & STEVEN GOTELLI 10/01/20157298
Refund Check  102.61

 102.61Total for Check Number 7298:

UB*00211 KERMAN WASH & DRY 10/01/20157299
Refund Check  138.14

 138.14Total for Check Number 7299:

Page 15AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

27

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10892
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00195
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00204
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00197
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00208
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00206
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00205
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00211


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

UB*00207 LAS TRES B BEAUTY SALON 10/01/20157300
Refund Check  5.28

 5.28Total for Check Number 7300:

UB*00199 OLGA MAGALLON 10/01/20157301
Refund Check  8.16

 8.16Total for Check Number 7301:

UB*00213 VERONICA MEDINA 10/01/20157302
Refund Check  44.34

 44.34Total for Check Number 7302:

UB*00202 ALEX MENDRIN 10/01/20157303
Refund Check  7.12

Refund Check  0.08

Refund Check  0.58

Refund Check  5.16

Refund Check  0.47

Refund Check  0.16

 13.57Total for Check Number 7303:

UB*00203 DANIEL PARRA 10/01/20157304
Refund Check  0.08

Refund Check  12.24

Refund Check  2.54

Refund Check  6.72

Refund Check  0.39

 21.97Total for Check Number 7304:

UB*00212 MANUEL PEREZ JR 10/01/20157305
Refund Check  138.01

 138.01Total for Check Number 7305:

UB*00201 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY RENTAL 10/01/20157306
Refund Check  0.11

Refund Check  12.69

Refund Check  3.66

Refund Check  9.71

Refund Check  7.79

Refund Check  0.67

Refund Check  0.41

 35.04Total for Check Number 7306:

UB*00209 THOMAS SANTOS 10/01/20157307
Refund Check  71.08

 71.08Total for Check Number 7307:

UB*00196 NADINE SMITH 10/01/20157308
Refund Check  0.25

Refund Check  14.17

Refund Check  8.45

Refund Check  22.41

Refund Check  10.02

Page 16AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

28

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00207
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00199
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00213
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00202
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00203
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00212
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00201
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00209
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00196


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 55.30Total for Check Number 7308:

UB*00210 RHONDA & CHRISTOPHER TATE 10/01/20157309
Refund Check  55.08

 55.08Total for Check Number 7309:

UB*00198 WESTCO EQUITIES, INC 10/01/20157310
Refund Check  0.25

Refund Check  14.17

Refund Check  1.94

Refund Check  11.25

 27.61Total for Check Number 7310:

 1,457.67Total for 10/1/2015:

Report Total (149 checks):  406,183.74

Page 17AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/1/2015  4:48 PM)

29

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00210
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00198


   _______ 
 

City of Kerman 

“Community Comes First” 
  

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER   
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: POLICE DEPARTMENT
STAFF REPORT

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 7, 2015

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Chief Joseph Blohm 
Subject: Resolution approving agreement with the Madera Police Department for the use of the Kerman Police 

Department's firearms range facility. 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion approve resolution agreement with Madera Police Department for the use the Kerman Police 
Department Range located at 15485 W. Church Avenue, Kerman. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The Kerman Police Department has a firearms range facility which is located to the rear of 15485 W. Church Avenue, 
Kerman. This facility is used monthly by the Kerman Police Department to train officers in the use of handguns, 
shotguns, and rifles. Historically, the Kerman Police Department has allowed other law enforcement agencies to use 
the facility when needed. Madera Police Department has asked to use the range facility and Chief Blohm has 
requested that we create a formal agreement between the two agencies. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Madera Police Department has asked to use the range facility and Chief Blohm has requested that we create a 
formal agreement between the two agencies. Historically several different agencies including Madera Police 
Department and the Fresno Sheriff’s Department have used the Kerman Police Department’s range facility for 
firearms training. In the past, there have not been any formal agreements between the Kerman Police Department 
and other agencies using the range. Chief Blohm has no objection to other agencies using the range, but would like 
a written agreement in place with the visiting agencies. Madera Police Department will provide their own supplies 
and materials needed for their training. Madera Police Department will clean the range area of any debris, trash, or 
materials when they complete their training. Madera Police Department will coordinate all training dates and times 
with the Kerman Police Department. At Chief Blohm’s request, the Kerman City Attorney has drafted the proposed 
agreement.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
None 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None 
 
Attachments:  
 
 A. Resolution w/Exhibit 

30



City Council Staff Report     2 of 6 
City of Madera Police Department 

 
Attachment ‘A’ 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__  

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN  

APPROVING AN ANNUAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF KERMAN  
AND THE CITY OF MADERA POLICE DEPARTMENT FOR THE USE OF THE KERMAN POLICE 

DEPARTMENT'S FIREARMS RANGE FACILITY 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Madera Police Department has asked to use the Kerman Police Department's 
firearms range facility; and  

 WHEREAS, the City would like to enter into an annual agreement to allow the City of Madera Police 
Department to use the Kerman Police Department’s Firearms Range facility as described in the attached 
agreement Exhibit ‘A’. 

 NOW THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DOES RESOLVE as follows: 

SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated by reference. 

SECTION 2. Approves the attached annual agreement and authorizes the city manager to sign the 
agreement on behalf of the City. 

 The foregoing resolution was approved by the City Council of the City of Kerman at a regular meeting 
held on the 7th day of October 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 

 
 AYES:   
 NOES:  
 ABSENT:  
 ABSTAIN:  

 

This resolution is hereby approved. 
         _____________________ 
         Stephen B. Hill 
ATTEST:         Mayor 
 
_____________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

31



City Council Staff Report     3 of 6 
City of Madera Police Department 

Exhibit ‘A’ 

AGREEMENT 
AGREEMENT FOR USE OF CITY OF KERMAN PROPERTY 

 
Use of Range Facility by City of Madera Police Department 

 
This agreement for use of City of Kerman Property ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between the City 
of Kerman, a municipal corporation ("City") and the City of Madera Police Department (hereinafter "Permittee"). City 
and Permittee may be collectively referred to herein as "parties." 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. The City is the owner of the real property located in the City of Kerman, described as the Range Facility, 
located to the rear of 15485 W. Church Avenue, Kerman, California 93630. The Range Facility is hereby also 
referred to as “Premises.” 

B. The Permittee has requested permission from the City to enter the Premises for the purposes identified in 
this Agreement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS IDENTIFIED 
HEREIN, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. PERMISSION TO ENTER. The City hereby grants permission to Permitee (including its officers, employees, 

and agents) to enter the Premises in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, for the purpose of training 
on date and times to be mutually agreed upon by the parties. Permittee is solely responsible for supplying all 
appropriate equipment and materials convenient or necessary to utilize the Range Facility for training. 
Permittee is solely responsible for conducting the training by a POST certified instructor and ensuring the 
safety of the participants in conjunction with the use of the Premise by Permittee, including providing all 
necessary personnel. 

2. TERM. The term of this Agreement shall be for one year commencing upon full execution of this Agreement 
by the parties. 

3. PAYMENT. No payment is required. 

4. RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES. Permittee is, and at all times shall remain, an independent 
contractor solely responsible for all acts of its employees, agents, or contractors, including any negligent acts 
or omissions. Permittee is not City's agent, and shall have no authority to act on behalf of the City, or to bind 
the City to any obligation whatsoever, unless the City provides prior written authorization to Permittee. 

5. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. Permittee shall comply with all applicable legal requirements including all 
federal, state, and local laws (including ordinances and resolutions), whether or not said laws are expressly 
stated in this Agreement. 

6. INSURANCE. Permittee shall, throughout the duration of this Agreement, maintain insurance to cover 
Permittee (including its agents, representatives, contractors, and employees) in connection with the  
performance under this Agreement. This Agreement identifies the minimum insurance levels with which 

32



City Council Staff Report     4 of 6 
City of Madera Police Department 

Permittee shall comply; however the minimum insurance levels shall not relieve Permittee of any other 
performance responsibilities under this Agreement (including all indemnity requirements), and Permittee may 
carry, at its own expense, any additional insurance it deems necessary or prudent. Concurrently with the 
execution of this Agreement by the Permittee, and prior to the commencement of any services, the Permittee 
shall furnish written proof of insurance (certificates and endorsements), in a form acceptable to the City. 
Permittee shall provide substitute written proof of insurance no later than thirty (30) days prior to the 
expiration date of any insurance policy required by this Agreement. 

a. Minimum Insurance Levels. Permittee shall maintain insurance at the following minimum levels: 

i. Commercial General Liability. (with coverage at least as broad as ISO form CG 00 01 01 
96) coverage in an amount not less than $2,000,000 general aggregate and $1,000,000 per 
occurrence for general liability, bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage. 

ii. Automobile Liability. (with coverage at least as broad as ISO form CA 00 01 07 97, for 
"any auto") coverage in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 
and property damage. 

iii. Workers' Compensation. coverage as required by the state of California. 

b. Endorsements. The insurance policies shall be endorsed as follows: 

i. For the commercial general liability insurance, the City (including its elected officials, 
employees, and agents) shall be named as insured, and the policy shall be endorsed with a 
form at least as broad as ISO form CG 20 10 11 85. 

ii. Permittee's insurance is primary to any other insurance available to the City with respect to 
any claim arising out of this Agreement. Any insurance maintained by the City shall be in 
excess of the Permittee's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

iii. Permittee's insurance will not be canceled, limited, or allowed to expire without renewal until 
after thirty (30) days written notice has been given to the City. 

c. Qualifications of Insurers. All insurance companies providing coverage to Permittee shall be 
insurance organizations authorized by the Insurance Commissioner of the State of California to 
transact business of insurance in the State of California, and shall have an A.M. Best's rating of not 
less than "A:VII." 

7. REPORTING DAMAGES. If any damage (including death, personal injury or property damage) occurs in 
connection with the performance of this Agreement, Permittee shall immediately notify the Kerman Police 
Department by telephone at 846-8800 and Permittee shall promptly submit to the City's Authorized 
Representative a written report (in a form acceptable to the City) with the following information: (a) a detailed 
description of the damage (including the name and address of the injured or deceased person(s), and a 
description of damaged property; (b) name and address of witnesses, and (c) name and address of any 
potential insurance companies. 

8. INDEMNIFICATION. Permittee shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City and its elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, 
costs (including without limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature resulting or arising from  

33



City Council Staff Report     5 of 6 
City of Madera Police Department 

performance or failure to perform under this agreements with the exception of the sole negligence or willful 
misconduct of the City. 

9. ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION. This Agreement, and any portion thereof, shall not be assigned or 
transferred, nor shall any of the Permittee's duties be delegated, without the written consent of the City. Any 
attempt to assign or delegate this Agreement without the written consent of the City shall be void and of no 
force or effect. A consent by the City to one assignment shall not be deemed to be a consent to any 
subsequent assignment. 

10. WAIVERS. Waiver of a breach or default under this Agreement shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a 
waiver of a subsequent breach of the same or any other provision of this Agreement. 

11. NOTICES. All notices required or contemplated by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered 
to the respective party as set forth in this section. Communications shall be deemed to be effective upon the 
first to occur of: (a) actual receipt by a party's Authorized Representative, or (b) actual receipt at the address 
designated below, or (c) three working days following deposit in the United States Mail of registered or 
certified mail sent to the address designated below. The Authorized Representative of either party may 
modify their respective contact information identified in this section by providing notice to the other party. 

TO: City      TO: Permittee 
  Attn: Joseph Blohm    Attn: Steve Frazier 
  City of Kerman Police Department  City of Madera Police Department  
  850 S. Madera Ave.    330 S. C Street 
  Kerman, CA 93630    Madera, CA 93637 

12. HEADINGS. The heading titles for each section of this Agreement are included only as a guide to the 
contents and are not to be considered as controlling, enlarging, or restricting the interpretation of the 
Agreement. 

13. SEVERABILITY. If any term of this Agreement (including any phrase, provision, covenant, or condition) is 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the Agreement shall be construed as 
not containing that term, and the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect; provided, 
however, this paragraph shall not be applied to the extent that it would result in a frustration of the parties’ 
intent under this Agreement. 

14. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE. The interpretation, validity, and enforcement of this 
Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. Any 
suit, claim, or legal proceeding related to this Agreement shall be filed and heard in a court of competent 
jurisdiction in the County of Fresno. 

15. ATTORNEYS’ FEES. In the event any legal action is commenced to enforce this Agreement, the prevailing 
party is entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses incurred. 

16. MODIFICATIONS. This Agreement may not be modified orally or in any manner other than by an agreement 
in writing signed by both parties. 

17. CONFLICTS. If any conflicts arise between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the terms and 
conditions of the attached exhibits or any documents expressly incorporated, the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall control. 

34



City Council Staff Report     6 of 6 
City of Madera Police Department 

 
18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, including all documents incorporated herein by reference, 

comprises the entire integrated understanding between the parties concerning the work described herein. 
This Agreement supersedes all prior negotiations, agreements, and understandings regarding this matter, 
whether written or oral. The documents incorporated by reference into this Agreement are complimentary; 
what is called for in one is binding as if called for in all. 

19. SIGNATURES. The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the right, 
power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective 
legal entities of the Permittee and the City. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon 
the parties herein and their respective successors and assigns. 

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Permitee do hereby agree to the full performance of the terms set forth 
herein. 

 

CITY OF KERMAN  CITY OF MADERA POLICE DEPARTMENT 

   

    

By: Stephen B. Hill 
 
 

 By: Robert Poythress 

Title: Mayor 
 

 Title: Mayor 

Date:  Date: 

 

 

35



 
 
 City of Kerman 

“Where Community Comes First” 
 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: POLICE DEPARTMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 7, 2015 

  
  

To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Chief Joseph Blohm 
Subject: Resolution Amending the 2015-16 Public Safety Employee Salary Scale to Include the Rank of 

Lieutenant  

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution amending the Public Safety Employee Salary Scale to include the rank of 
Lieutenant. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
At the Council Meeting of September 2, 2015, the Council adopted Resolution No. 15-52 creating a lieutenant position 
and eliminating a sergeant position. The proposed resolution sets the salary scale for the rank of lieutenant and 
thereby amends the Public Safety Employee Salary Scale.  
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  

On September 2, 2015, the Council discussed and approved the creation of a lieutenant position as part of the Police 
Chief’s recommended succession plan for the Police Department. When the Chief was hired in 2011, there were 
some preliminary discussions about the future development of a succession plan for the police department. Over the 
next three years, the Chief had pursued discussions with the City Manager(s) requesting the addition of a lieutenant 
position into the Police Department’s annual budget. The new lieutenant position would create of a mid-level 
management position within the Police Department that will allow the Chief to restructure the police organization and 
to realign duties and responsibilities within the department. In each of the three annual budgets that followed, the 
addition of the position was determined to not be feasible at that time due to the department/city’s financial 
constraints. The cost to upgrade a sergeant position would reflect an 18% increase for one sergeant position in the 
Police Department’s budget. The upgrading of a sergeant to a lieutenant would be far more economical than creating 
a new a lieutenant position in the department. The projected cost to upgrade the current vacant sergeant position in 
the department to a lieutenant position is an increase of 18% of that position.  

36



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 4 
Public Safety Employee Salary Schedule 
  

The next question would be, how do we pay the cost to increase the sergeant position to a lieutenant position?  
 
There are two options here:  
 
Option #1 would be to make a budget adjustment and add additional funds to the existing police department 2015-
16 budget.  
 
Option #2 would be for the Chief to hold the vacant sergeant position open for a short period of time to offset the 
increased cost of the lieutenant. The Chief estimates that the cost would equate to 10 weeks of vacancy. This is the 
most economical option since it there would be no cost increase to the Police Department’s operational budget this 
fiscal year. Of these two options, the Chief recommends option #2 which would hold the vacancy open for a short 
period of time to create the salary saving to offset the new position. 

The Council has expressed a desire to create a successful succession plan for the Police Department. The Chief 
truly believes that the current sergeant vacancy has given the department a golden opportunity to accomplish this 
goal this year. If the council approves the Chief’s proposal, he will immediately begin the process to recruit a qualified 
manager to begin working with him to accomplish the succession plan. The attached Exhibit ‘A’ to the resolution is a 
Public Safety Salary Scale with the projected lieutenant position included. The pay scale for the Chief, Sergeants, 
Officers, and civilian staff are accurate to the existing salary scales for those positions. Included in column B is a 
salary differential projection for each rank over the rank below so that the Council can see the pay differential between 
ranks. The Chief has discussed this issue with the City Manager and he supports this proposal.  

FISCAL IMPACT  
 
To upgrade a sergeant position to a lieutenant position, there will be an 18% increase in salary for the lieutenant. To 
offset this increase during the current fiscal year, the Chief is prepared to hold the sergeant position vacant until the 
salary saving from the vacancy offset the cost of the new lieutenant in the current fiscal year. The Chief estimates 
the position will need to remain vacant for approximately 10 weeks. Attached is a copy of the newly proposed Kerman 
PD - Public Safety Employees Salary Scale. By holding the position vacant until the salary saving are accomplished, 
then there will be no cost to the Police Department during the current fiscal year. 
 
Attachment: 
 
 A. Resolution w/Exhibit 
  

37



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 4 
Public Safety Employee Salary Schedule 
  

 
Attachment ‘A’ 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN AMENDING THE  

PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEE SALARY SCHEDULE TO INCLUDE THE RANK OF LIEUTENANT 
 

 WHEREAS, the Police Chief, at the direction of the City Council, has been directed to create a Succession 
Plan within the Police Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, succession planning is a process for identifying and developing people (internally or externally) 
with the potential to fill key leadership positions in a department; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on September 2, 2015, the Council approved the creation of a lieutenant position and 
elimination of a sergeant position as part of the Succession Plan and directed that the salary schedule amendment 
be brought back to the Council for consideration. 

 
NOW THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DOES RESOLVE as follows:  
 
 SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated by reference. 

 

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby approves and adopts the proposed amended Public Safety Employee 
Salary Schedule as shown on Exhibit ‘A’ to include the rank of Lieutenant. 

 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 
October 7, 2015, and passed at said regular meeting by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted. 
 
        ___________________________ 
        Stephen B. Hill 
        Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk  

38



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 4 
Public Safety Employee Salary Schedule 
  

 
Exhibit ‘A’ 

 
 

 

Public Safety Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F Step G

    Lieutenant 5,717$        6,002$        6,303$        6,618$        6,949$        7,296$        7,661$        

    Sergeant 4,845$        5,086$        5,341$        5,607$        5,889$        6,182$        6,491$        

    Corporal 4,061$        4,264$        4,477$        4,701$        4,936$        5,183$        5,442$        

    Police Officer 3,683$        3,867$        4,061$        4,264$        4,477$        4,701$        4,936$        

    Records Manager 2,873$        3,016$        3,168$        3,325$        3,492$        3,666$        3,850$        

    Records Clerk 2,438$        2,561$        2,689$        2,824$        2,965$        3,112$        3,269$        

    Animal Control* 2,561$        2,689$        2,824$        2,965$        3,113$        3,269$        3,350$        

    Administrative Assistant 2,873$        3,016$        3,168$        3,325$        3,492$        3,666$        3,850$        

*Animal Control Step G @ 2.5%
1% Cola Effective July 1, 2015

Public Safety Employees
July 2015 - June 2016

39



Leak Notification

September 25, 2015 Meter Reading

Page 1 of 4

House # Meter Serial # Present Read Notice #

211 S WALNUT AVE 10427703 698 1

266 S OLYMPIC ST 9369409 853 1

271 S PARK AVE 9369532 1928 1

367 S LUM AVE 9252689 1251 1

401 S DEL NORTE AVE 9369398 1196 1

432 S GOLDENROD AVE 12294830 33 1

483 S THOMAS AVE 9252774 1467 1

555 S 17TH ST 9369506 852 1

572 S ALMOND CT 9419849 1657 1

574 GURDWARA AVE 9253047 2061 1

599 MCKENNA CT 9252852 1121 1

763 S LUM AVE 9369422 1480 1

774 S ALMOND AVE 9369539 1168 1

14019 W WHITESBRIDGE 13599536 188 1

14047 W F ST 9252779 1529 1

14070 W E ST 9253150 1287 1

14128 W STANISLAUS A 10428488 282 1

14178 W KEARNEY BLVD 10428463 12 1

14194 W G ST 9252997 1764 1

14291 W SHERI ST 9369403 924 1

14299 W F ST 9252828 1612 1

14320 PALM CT 9253001 1372 1

14355 W CHAD CT 9252794 1208 1

14387 W KEARNEY BLVD 9369470 1790 1

14447 W G ST 9253020 2432 1

14469 W CHARDONAY AV 9253088 1654 1

14474 W G ST 9253023 665 1

14507 W SUNSET AVE 9252357 1361 1

14537 PALM CT 9369132 1502 1

14540 W SAN JOAQUIN 9149558 2496 1

15424 W SUNSET AVE 9419961 2081 1

15794 W E ST 9419954 1743 1

15830 W KEARNEY BLVD 9253274 1491 1

15859 W EL MAR AVE 10427697 1705 1

15877 W BOTELHO AVE 9369153 1524 1

15888 W STANISLAUS A 9149609 974 1

15900 W SAN JOAQUIN 9369336 1471 1

15962 W B ST 9369449 1161 1

16039 W KEARNEY BLVD 9369229 255 1

16101 W SAN JOAQUIN 9252562 2012 1

273 S OLYMPIC ST 9253238 2020 2

277 S MICHELLE AVE 9252669 2182 2

442 S SISKIYOU AVE 9252385 1855 2

463 S THOMAS AVE 9252756 1040 2

Street Name

40



Leak Notification

September 25, 2015 Meter Reading

Page 2 of 4

House # Meter Serial # Present Read Notice #Street Name

545 WALNUT CT 9419994 1264 2

549 GURDWARA AVE 9253019 1432 2

571 S KENNETH AVE 9252368 959 2

585 S SISKIYOU AVE 9367177 254 2

645 S GOLDENROD AVE 9253144 2928 2

14061 W WHITESBRIDGE 13019908 2003 2

14136 W B ST 9252844 2488 2

14290 W SHERI ST 9253125 1149 2

14303 W SHERI ST 9149589 1115 2

14320 W E ST 9252932 2485 2

14322 W B ST 9149600 1400 2

14325 W TAYLOR ST 9252987 1691 2

14448 W CHARDONAY AV 9252826 1051 2

14468 W CHARDONAY AV 9253111 1693 2

14503 W SAN JOAQUIN 9253137 1197 2

14517 W EL MAR AVE 9253266 1549 2

14543 W STANISLAUS A 9253202 823 2

14551 W KEARNEY BLVD 9419875 1688 2

14557 W SAN JOAQUIN 9253335 1952 2

14581 W STANISLAUS A 9149587 1808 2

14855 W B ST 9419899 2038 2

15475 W ASHLI AVE 9419911 670 2

15477 W MIDDLETON AV 9419980 1313 2

15626 W MIDDLETON AV 9252751 1865 2

15668 W CALIFORNIA A 9252750 2629 2

15676 W DAVID AVE 9252694 1081 2

15790 W KEARNEY BLVD 9253281 1531 2

15920 W SUNSET AVE 9252386 1247 2

15931 W SUNSET AVE 9252387 1319 2

16160 W TROY AVE 9252624 1081 2

16172 W BOTELHO AVE 9369265 973 2

15695 W E ST 9369377 1078 2

102 S ALMOND AVE 9369173 1897 3

276 S SISKIYOU AVE 9369500 1266 3

323 S MERLOT AVE 10427791 592 3

372 S ALMOND AVE 9252446 2295 3

392 BURGUNDY ST 9253152 1510 3

401 S MERLOT AVE 9253290 1660 3

420 BURGUNDY ST 9253153 1247 3

422 S 2ND ST 9419891 1478 3

492 S MADERA AVE 9633035 148 3

545 S GOLDENROD AVE 9253143 2442 3

551 S MICHELLE AVE 9252407 1062 3

564 KAREN AVE 9252980 1508 3

41



Leak Notification

September 25, 2015 Meter Reading

Page 3 of 4

House # Meter Serial # Present Read Notice #Street Name

571 S SUSAN AVE 9253313 1152 3

602 S SUSAN AVE 9252528 2217 3

699 S 16TH ST 9252929 2053 3

861 S MCKENNA AVE 9252818 2206 3

873 S SHERI WAY 9252912 1132 3

14082 W E ST 9253149 1611 3

14083 W G ST 9252784 1097 3

14278 W B ST 9149571 1303 3

14295 W SHERI ST 9253093 2431 3

14319 W SHERI ST 9252913 804 3

14475 W SUNSET AVE 9252801 1466 3

14508 PALM CT 9369149 695 3

14551 W STANISLAUS A 9253228 2145 3

14587 W SAN JOAQUIN 9253309 1750 3

14594 W CHARDONAY AV 9253245 1647 3

15807 W E ST 9419854 2512 3

15823 W E ST 9419947 1770 3

15861 W KEARNEY BLVD 9419885 1532 3

15877 W E ST 9419859 1512 3

15880 W GATEWAY BLVD 12702735 6510 3

15906 W D ST 9369464 1645 3

240 S SUSAN AVE 9252551 1582 30

264 S JOSEPH AVE 9252737 2423 30

303 S CHABLIS AVE 9253354 1466 30

373 S LUM AVE 9252452 1962 30

423 S MERLOT AVE 9253296 2040 30

453 S ALMOND AVE 9252364 673 30

520 BURGUNDY ST 9252996 2378 30

546 S LUM DR 9149664 1018 30

567 S PARK AVE 9419883 1454 30

763 S KENNETH AVE 9252568 1905 30

1705 S MADERA AVE 12294831 85 30

14247 W G ST 9252971 2295 30

14329 W B ST 9419870 1007 30

14352 W CHAD CT 9253104 1366 30

14355 W SHERI CT 9253077 1404 30

14580 W SUNSET AVE 9253345 1137 30

15684 WOOTEN CT 9252745 1022 30

15726 W MIDDLETON AV 9252398 1715 30

15766 W E ST 9419857 2125 30

15905 W MONTEREY LN 9252384 950 30

16029 W KEARNEY BLVD 9369231 764 30

16160 W NATALIE AVE 9369286 1832 30

16169 W SAN JOAQUIN 9252646 1996 30

42



Leak Notification

September 25, 2015 Meter Reading

Page 4 of 4

House # Meter Serial # Present Read Notice #Street Name

16184 W TROY AVE 9252519 1192 30

150 S 1ST ST 70192486 8144 PG

277 S MERLOT AVE 9253072 1808 PG

287 S MERLOT AVE 9253071 671 PG

412 S ALMOND AVE 9252471 1310 PG

445 S GOLDENROD AVE 11013859 2294 PG

516 S 18TH ST 9253168 2531 PG

529 BURGUNDY ST 9253027 1461 PG

547 WALNUT CT 9419995 903 PG

561 S MICHELLE AVE 9252414 1377 PG

582 S KENNETH AVE 9252483 1660 PG

601 S 1ST ST 10247846 874 PG

658 S 17TH CT 9369388 763 PG

675 S 16TH ST 9252939 1625 PG

689 S 17TH CT 9252835 2523 PG

798 S JOSEPH AVE 9252712 835 PG

846 S ALMOND AVE 9369534 1375 PG

1221 S MADERA AVE 10391329 1252 PG

14084 W G ST 9252811 1882 PG

14110 W F ST 9252803 2414 PG

14562 W STANISLAUS A 9419876 2968 PG

14576 W EL MAR AVE 9253068 1420 PG

14591 W CHARDONAY AV 9253227 1876 PG

14604 W SUNSET AVE 9253346 2645 PG

14918 W KEARNEY BLVD 10427720 919 PG

15688 W SUNSET AVE 9252596 2206 PG

15765 W KEARNEY BLVD 9252631 2118 PG

16168 W NATALIE AVE 9369287 1155 PG

First Notice 40

Second Notice 36

Final Notice 33

30 Day Citation 24

Pending Fine 27

Fines Issued 29

   (Not Published)

43



 
 City of Kerman 

“Where Community Comes First” 
 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY MANAGER 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 7, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: John Kunkel, Interim City Manager 
Subject: Resolution Amending Condition No. 8 in Exhibit ‘A’ of Resolution 13-68 relating to display of beer 

merchandise by Walmart Stores Inc. 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Council by motion approve resolution amending Condition No. 8 in Exhibit ‘A’ of Resolution 13-68 relating to display 
of beer merchandise by Walmart Stores Inc.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
In August of 2013 the City Council passed Resolution 13-68 which granted a type 21 off-sale alcohol license to 
Walmart. As part of that resolution 11 conditions were placed on Walmart for license approval. Item 8 of the conditions 
states “restrict all alcohol merchandise and /or displays to the area designated in Exhibit ‘B’.”  
 
Walmart has approached the City and is requesting the opportunity to display alcohol merchandise, primarily beer, to 
“end cap” areas at various locations in the store outside of the designated area defined in Exhibit ‘B’ 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
Walmart would like the opportunity to advertise alcohol merchandise on some of its end cap areas at the end of aisles 
at various locations throughout the store. To be able to do that, Walmart must get an exemption to condition 8 of 
Resolution 13-68, from the Kerman City Council. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
In listening to the meeting of August 2013 when Council approved the alcohol license for Walmart, one of the main 
concerns was the problem of theft of alcoholic beverages from Walmart. In speaking with Chief Blohm, while we do 
get a number of calls at Walmart, none of them involve the theft of liquor. While it could be pointed out that one of the 
reasons for this is the restriction to limit liquor to a certain area, staffs experience is that most thefts of alcohol will 
usually be from smaller stores with usually one employee on duty. In discussions with Walmart management, if granted 
the exception, they will not put displays near exit points. Also Walmart has loss prevention specialist who help 
coordinate such displays to reduce the chance of theft. 
 
Please note that the amendment to Condition No. 8 in the proposed resolution would allow the display of beer only 
outside of the designated area in Exhibit ‘B’ to be limited to end cap areas only and does not allow displays outside of 
the building or other areas. It should also be noted that no other licensee in the City of Kerman has this restriction as 
part of their liquor license. 

  

44



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 8 
 
  
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
None 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Approved Resolution 13-68 w/Exhibits 
B. Resolution w/Exhibit 

45



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 8 
 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 

46



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 8 
 
  

Exhibit 'A'  
 

Conditions of Approval 
 

1. Assign one contract security patrol person (from Securitas) to guard the front doors (a "roving guard ") during 
peak store hours (exact time to be determined). The roving guard will take the place of the parking lot patrol 
during this time.    
 

2. Establish Emergency Vehicle parking space in front of the store (make existing emergency parking space 
"official "). 
 

3. Sale of single containers of alcohol, beer /malt beverages shall be sold in original factory packages of a six -
pack or greater (i. e., no breaking up of multi -pack containers). 
 

4. No sale of 30 ml (airplane) bottles or flasks of distilled spirits. 
 

5.  Utilize locking caps or locking cabinet for select, high -theft distilled spirits. Items that cannot be capped will 
be placed in a locked cabinet. 
 

6. When the City has established a program permitting private parties to hire Level 1 Recruits to provide 
security on private property, Walmart agrees to use the program to provide security for special events when 
a temporary use permit is required (i. e. Black Friday, outdoor sales, etc.). 
 

7. Restrict the sale of alcohol during the hours of 6:00 a. m. to 12: 00 a. m. 
 

8. Restrict all alcohol merchandise and /or display to the area designated in Exhibit' B'.  
 

9. Wine coolers, whether made with wine or malt products, shall not be sold in quantities of less than a factory 
four -pack. 
 

10. No advertisement of alcohol on the exterior of the building or on the premises.   
 

11. Post and maintain on the premises and in the parking lot used in conjunction herewith, notices or signs of 
appropriate size, clearly visible to patrons of the store and parking lot and to persons on the public sidewalk 
stating the following or as modified for compliance with state law: "UNLAWFUL TO ENTER, BE OR REMAIN 
ON ADJACENT PARKING LOT OR ADJACENT PUBLIC SIDEWALK WITH AN OPEN ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGE CONTAINER. BP 25612.5 PC 647E (a); SCS 9. 92. 202 

  

47



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 8 
 
  

 
Exhibit 'B' 

 
Alcohol Merchandise /Display Area 

 
  

48



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 8 
 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
AMENDING CONDITION NO. 8 IN EXHIBIT A OF RESOLUTION NO. 13-68 RELATING TO DISPLAY OF 

BEER MERCHANDISE BY WALMART STORES, INC. 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Council Resolution No. 13-68 (attached hereto), a letter was submitted to ABC 
regarding a Type 21 License to Walmart Stores, Inc. located at 14061 W. Whitesbridge Road, Kerman, 
California; and  

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 13-68 included Exhibit A with eleven (11) conditions regarding the sale of 
alcohol by Walmart Stores, Inc.; and  

WHEREAS, Walmart Stores, Inc. has requested that City amend Condition No. 8 in Exhibit A of 
Resolution No. 13-68; and 

WHEREAS, Walmart Stores, Inc. is requesting the opportunity to display alcohol merchandise, 
primarily beer, to “end cap” areas at various locations in the store outside of the designated area identified in 
Condition No. 8 and illustrated in Exhibit ‘B’ of City of Kerman Resolution 13-68; and 

WHEREAS, after review and analysis City staff believes amending Condition No. 8 to allow for the 
display of beer outside the current restricted area would not be detrimental to the public health and safety of 
the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN as 
follows: 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth. 

Section 2. Condition No. 8 in Exhibit A of Resolution No. 13-68 is amended to read as follows:  

8. Restrict all alcohol merchandise and/or displays to the area designated in Exhibit 
‘B’. Notwithstanding this restriction, beer may be displayed at various “end caps” 
outside of the restricted area of Exhibit ‘B’. This exception shall not apply to wine or 
distilled spirits. 

49



City Council Staff Report    Page 7 of 8 
 
  

 Section 3. Except as expressly amended above, Resolution No. 13-68 shall continue in full force and 
effect. 

Section 4. This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on 
the 7th day of October, 2015 and passed at said regular meeting by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted. 
 
 
             
         _________________________ 
         Stephen B. Hill  
         Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
 
___________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

  

50



City Council Staff Report    Page 8 of 8 
 
  

Exhibit ‘A’  
 

Conditions of Approval 
 

1. Assign one contract security patrol person (from Securitas) to guard the front doors (a "roving guard ") during 
peak store hours (exact time to be determined). The roving guard will take the place of the parking lot patrol 
during this time.    
 

2. Establish Emergency Vehicle parking space in front of the store (make existing emergency parking space 
"official "). 
 

3. Sale of single containers of alcohol, beer /malt beverages shall be sold in original factory packages of a six -
pack or greater (i. e., no breaking up of multi -pack containers). 
 

4. No sale of 30 ml (airplane) bottles or flasks of distilled spirits. 
 

5.  Utilize locking caps or locking cabinet for select, high -theft distilled spirits. Items that cannot be capped will 
be placed in a locked cabinet. 
 

6. When the City has established a program permitting private parties to hire Level 1 Recruits to provide 
security on private property, Walmart agrees to use the program to provide security for special events when 
a temporary use permit is required (i. e. Black Friday, outdoor sales, etc.). 
 

7. Restrict the sale of alcohol during the hours of 6:00 a. m. to 12: 00 a. m. 
 

8. Restrict all alcohol merchandise and/or displays to the area designated in Exhibit ‘B’. Notwithstanding this 
restriction, beer may be displayed at various “end caps” outside of the restricted area of Exhibit ‘B’. This 
exception shall not apply to wine or distilled spirits. 
 

9. Wine coolers, whether made with wine or malt products, shall not be sold in quantities of less than a factory 
four -pack. 
 

10. No advertisement of alcohol on the exterior of the building or on the premises.   
 

11. Post and maintain on the premises and in the parking lot used in conjunction herewith, notices or signs of 
appropriate size, clearly visible to patrons of the store and parking lot and to persons on the public sidewalk 
stating the following or as modified for compliance with state law: "UNLAWFUL TO ENTER, BE OR REMAIN 
ON ADJACENT PARKING LOT OR ADJACENT PUBLIC SIDEWALK WITH AN OPEN ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGE CONTAINER. BP 25612.5 PC 647E (a); SCS 9. 92. 202 

 

51



    
 
 

 City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  

 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT  
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 7, 2015 

  

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 

Subject: Resolution Approving Reimbursement Agreement for Walmart Off-site Improvements 

RECOMMENDATION  
 

Council by motion adopt resolution approving the Reimbursement Agreement with Walmart Real Estate Business 
Trust for off-site improvements installed for the development of their commercial shopping center. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 

Walmart was required to install various off-site improvements in connection with the development of their 
commercial center at the southwest corner of Whitesbridge Road and Goldenrod Avenues. This Agreement will 
memorialize the reimbursements due them for the cost of the improvements over and above their fair-share needed 
to mitigate their development and the City Development Impact Fees due for the project. 
 

OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 

None. 
 

DISCUSSION  
 

The development of the new Walmart store at the southwest corner of Whitesbridge Road and Goldenrod Avenue 
required the construction of various off-site improvements in order to mitigate the impacts of the new commercial 
center. Those improvements included 3 traffic signals, widening Whitesbridge Road and Goldenrod Avenue, 12-
inch water mains, storm drain pipes and secondary water mains. In all of these cases the improvements installed 
contain additional capacity above that required to serve the Walmart center alone. For the traffic related 
improvements, the Traffic Impact Study included a “fair-share” calculation as to the percentage of the cost of the 
work that was attributable to Walmart. 
 
The Traffic Impact Study also identified future long-term cumulative (year 2035) conditions that did not need to be 
constructed before the store opened, but for which Walmart should pay a portion of the cost of these improvements. 
Since these street improvements are so far in the future, the agreement allows for the payment for future mitigation 
measures to be subtracted from the reimbursement amounts, thereby reducing Walmart’s reimbursements.  
 
The City of Kerman has adopted Development Impact Fees to pay for major infrastructure improvements that will 
serve new developments. These major improvements are shown on the sewer, water and storm drain master plans 
for the City and the circulation element of the General Plan; and they are used in calculating the amounts for impact 
fees. Developers who install infrastructure for which fees are collected are eligible to receive credits in lieu of fee 

52



 
 
City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 12 
Walmart Reimbursement Agreement 
  

payment and reimbursements for the cost of improvements in excess of their fee obligation. The Development 
Impact Fees charged to Walmart are shown on Exhibit A of the agreement as well as the credits received for 
construction.  
 
The reimbursements due Walmart are detailed in Exhibit B of the Agreement and are summarized as follows: 
 
 Street Signals $554, 090 
 Major Street (Inside travel lanes and medians) $111,524 
 Outside Travel Lanes $193,611 
 Oversize Water Mains $27,527 
 Storm Drain Facilities $45,790 
 Water Major Facilities $45,178 
 
Reimbursements for these amounts will come only from impact fees collected from other developments.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT  
 

The amounts shown in the agreement will be added to the list of reimbursements to be paid as fees are collected 
from future developments. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING  
 

None. 
 

Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibit 
 
 

  

53



 
 
City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 12 
Walmart Reimbursement Agreement 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
APPROVING REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT WITH 

WALMART REAL ESTATE BUSINESS TRUST 
 

WHEREAS, Walmart Real Estate Business Trust (Walmart) has constructed certain street and utility 

improvements for public streets serving their commercial shopping center located at the southwest corner of 

Whitesbridge Road and Goldenrod Avenue (the project)  within the City of Kerman and; 

WHEREAS, Walmart is eligible to receive reimbursement for the amounts by which the cost of improvements 

constructed for the project exceeds their fair share percentage of cost and the amount of their Development Impact 

Fees which have been established by the City and; 

WHEREAS, the City of Kerman and Walmart desire to memorialize the amounts of reimbursements due 

Walmart by means of a Reimbursement Agreement attached as Exhibit ‘A’. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN RESOLVES that the 

Reimbursement Agreement shown in Exhibit ‘A’is hereby approved and that the Mayor is authorized to sign the 

agreement on behalf of the City of Kerman. 

 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 7 th 
day of October, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
             
        Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

54



 Reimbursement Agreement (WM Off-Site Improvements) 007 

W2058-Kerman_CA;_Store_#5701-01 -- 1777383.1 

 
 
City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 12 
Walmart Reimbursement Agreement 
  

 

Exhibit ‘A’ 
 

Kerman, California 

Store #5701-01 
 

 

REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

WALMART OFF-SITE IMRPROVEMENTS 

 

 

THIS REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT (“AGREEMENT”) is made 

 

   2015, (the “EFFECTIVE DATE”) by and between the CITY 

 

OF KERMAN, a Municipal Corporation hereinafter designated and called “CITY” and WAL- 

MART REAL ESTATE BUSINESS TRUST, a Delaware Statutory Trust, hereinafter designated 

as “OWNER”, without regard for number of gender. 

RECITALS 

 

OWNER has constructed certain street and utility improvements for the public streets 

serving a commercial shopping center developed by OWNER located within the corporate limits of 

the CITY and situated on the following described parcels: 

Lots 11 and 12 of Tract No. 5928 according to the map thereof recorded in Book 80 of 

Plats at Pages 79, 80 and 81, Fresno County Records. 

hereinafter designated as the “PROJECT.” 

 

OWNER prepared an Environmental Impact Report for the PROJECT (“EIR”), and many 

of the mitigation measures proposed in the EIR were incorporated in a proposed voter initiative 

which was adopted as Chapter 17.49 of the Kerman Municipal Code. 

55



 Reimbursement Agreement (WM Off-Site Improvements) 007 

W2058-Kerman_CA;_Store_#5701-01 -- 1777383.1 

 
 
City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 12 
Walmart Reimbursement Agreement 
  

 

The PROJECT was constructed in accordance with Chapter 17.49 of the Kerman Municipal 

Code. 

AGREEMENT 

 

In consideration of the foregoing Recitals, which Recitals are incorporated herein by this 

reference, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, and in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, it is mutually 

agreed and understood by and between the OWNER and CITY as follows: 

A. REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS 

 

OWNER and CITY hereby agree that OWNER has constructed all of the improvements 

required for the PROJECT pursuant to Chapter 17.49 of the Kerman Municipal Code, excepting 

certain improvements and reimbursements that are outside the scope of this agreement and are 

the subject of the “Reimbursement Agreement Regarding Railroad Crossing and Escrow 

Instructions” dated August 8, 2013. 

B. DEVELOPMENT FEES 

 

OWNER and CITY hereby agree that OWNER has paid public impact development fees 

(“DEVELOPMENT FEES”) or received the appropriate fee credit for sewer and water, storm 

drainage, traffic and other public facilities in the amounts designated as “Credit for 

Construction” or “Net Fee” as shown in Exhibit ‘A’ attached hereto and incorporated by this 

reference. 

C. REIMBURSEMENTS 

 

CITY and OWNER agree that OWNER is eligible to receive reimbursement for the 

amounts by which the cost of improvements constructed for the PROJECT by OWNER exceeds 

OWNER’S fair share percentage of cost and the amount of their DEVELOPMENT FEES as 

56



 Reimbursement Agreement (WM Off-Site Improvements) 007 

W2058-Kerman_CA;_Store_#5701-01 -- 1777383.1 

 
 
City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 12 
Walmart Reimbursement Agreement 
  

 

shown in Exhibit B (“REIMBURSEMENT AMOUNTS”), attached hereto and incorporated by 

reference. 

The  REIMBURSEMENT  AMOUNTS  owed  to  OWNER  by  DEVELOPMENT  FEE 

 

category are:  

 
Street Signals 

 

 
$554,090 

 Major Streets $111,524 

 Outside Travel Lane $193,611 

 Oversize Water $27,527 

 Storm Drain Facilities $45,790 

 Water Major Facilities $45,178 

 

 

The source of the reimbursement shall be from DEVELOPMENT FEES collected from 

other developments within the CITY, but in no event shall CITY be responsible for 

reimbursement from any source other than the categories of DEVELOPMENT FEES indicated 

above. Except as provided in the following Paragraph D, as the CITY accumulates 

DEVELOPMENT FEES in a category for which reimbursement is due, and for which there are 

no prior reimbursements due to third parties, CITY will pay the REIMBURSEMENT AMOUNT 

in whole, or in part, with interest to be paid at the Local Agency Investment Fund rate prevailing 

at the time of payment, with interest accruing from August 15, 2013. 

OWNER is required by the Mitigation Measures contained in the EIR and Chapter 17.49 

to make payments to the Street Signal Fee and Major Street Fee accounts to mitigate future 

traffic impacts. Payments for such future impacts have already been deducted from 

reimbursements due to OWNER for those accounts, as shown on Exhibit B. Accordingly, by 

executing this AGREEMENT, CITY acknowledges that OWNER shall be deemed to have 

satisfied any future obligations required by the Mitigation Measures contained in the EIR and 

Chapter 17.49 to make payments to the Street Signal Fee and Major Street Fee accounts. 

57



 Reimbursement Agreement (WM Off-Site Improvements) 007 

W2058-Kerman_CA;_Store_#5701-01 -- 1777383.1 

 
 
City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 12 
Walmart Reimbursement Agreement 
  

 

 

D. CITY’S DISCRETIONARY SCHEDULING OF PAYMENTS 

 

OWNER and CITY acknowledge that CITY must use DEVELOPMENT FEES to 

promote the orderly development of public infrastructure within CITY. By way of example 

only, and not as a limitation, the parties recognize and agree that a future development may 

require development of additional storm drain facilities, and that Storm Drain Facilities Fees that 

are assessed may necessarily be required to be used to construct such facilities, rather than used 

to reimburse OWNER at that time. CITY reserves its right to exercise its discretion to determine 

when DEVELOPMENT FEES in a specific category are available to pay reimbursement to 

OWNER, or alternatively, when such DEVELOPMENT FEES are required to be used to construct 

additional public facilities. 

OWNER and CITY acknowledge that at the time of this AGREEMENT, other 

developers are owed and awaiting reimbursement for prior improvements constructed in the 

following categories and amounts owed to those developers: 

Major Streets: $454,475, owed from 8/3/04 
Storm Drain Facilities: $153,700, owed from 9/21/05 

The following funds presently have inadequate funding to make reimbursement at this time: 

Oversize Water: $0 (Current fund balance of $139,745 is budgeted for use with Well 18) 
Water Major Facilities $0 (Current fund balance of $667,911 is budgeted for use with Well 18) 

 
Traffic Signals: $0 (Current fund balance of $95,515 is budgeted for the Whitesbridge & 

Vineland signal). 
Outside Travel Lane; New Fee, no balance and no reimbursements owed. 

 

E. TERM 

 

The term of this AGREEMENT shall begin on the day, month and year duly executed by all 

parties and shall remain in effect until all the terms and conditions contained in this 

AGREEMENT are satisfied. 

 

58



 Reimbursement Agreement (WM Off-Site Improvements) 007 

W2058-Kerman_CA;_Store_#5701-01 -- 1777383.1 

 
 
City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 12 
Walmart Reimbursement Agreement 
  

 

F. ATTORNEY’S FEES 

 

In the event it becomes necessary for either party to bring an action with respect to 

enforcement of the provisions of this AGREEMENT the prevailing party in such action shall be 

awarded reasonable costs and attorney’s fees as may be determined by the Court. 

G. TIME OF ESSENCE 

 

Time is of the essence of this AGREEMENT, and the same shall bind and inure to the 

benefit of the parties hereto, their successors and assigns. 

H. NOTICES 

 

Except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, all written notices, communication, and 

payments required or permitted to be given or made under this Agreement shall be in writing and 

sent by: (i) certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, (ii) personal 

delivery, or (iii) a recognized overnight carrier that provides proof of delivery, and shall be 

addressed as follows: 

 

If to Walmart: 

 

Walmart Real Estate Business Trust 

Attn: Property Manager 

(Ref: Kerman, California 

Store No. 5701-01) 

2001 SE 10
th 

Street 

Bentonville, AR 72716-0550 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If to City: 

 

City Manager 

City of Kerman 

850 S. Madera Avenue 

Kerman, CA 93630 

 

59



 Reimbursement Agreement (WM Off-Site Improvements) 007 

W2058-Kerman_CA;_Store_#5701-01 -- 1777383.1 

 
 
City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 12 
Walmart Reimbursement Agreement 
  

 

With a copy to: 

 

Walmart Real Estate Business Trust Attn: President 

(Ref: Kerman, California Store No. 5701-01) 

2001 SE 10th Street Bentonville, AR 72716-0550 

 

With a copy to: 

 

City Attorney  

Hilda Cantu Montoy 

2125 Kern Street, Suite 308 

Fresno, CA 93721 

 

With a copy to: 

 

Gresham Savage Nolan & Tilden 

Attn: J. Matthew Wilcox, Esq. 

(Ref: Kerman, California 

Store No. 5701-01) 

550 E. Hospitality Lane, Suite 300 

San Bernardino, CA 92408 

 

Notices shall be deemed effective upon receipt or rejection only. If any party hereto desires to 

change its address for the purpose of receipt of notice, such notice of change of address shall be 

given in the manner specified herein. However, unless and until such written notice of change is 

actually received, the last address and addressee as stated by written notice, or provided herein if 

no written notice of change has been received, shall be deemed to continue in effect for all 

purposes hereunder. 

 

I. ATTACHED EXHIBITS 

 

This AGREEMENT includes the following Exhibits, which are included herewith and 

made a part of this AGREEMENT: 

a. Exhibit A – City of Kerman Development Impact Fees 

b. Exhibit B – Reimbursements 

 

 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON NEXT PAGE] 

60



 
 
City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 12 
Walmart Reimbursement Agreement 
  

 

 

The parties have executed this AGREEMENT on the day and year first written above. 

 

Individual signing for OWNER certify that he/she is an agent or officer of the respective 

principals with authority to bind the principals to this AGREEMENT. 

 

CITY: OWNER: 

 

CITY OF KERMAN WALMART REAL ESTATE BUSINESS TRUST, 

A Municipal Corporation a Delaware Statutory Trust 

 

 

  By:    

John Kunkel, City Manager Name:    

Its:    

 

 

Attest: 

 

   

Marci Reyes, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

   
 

Hilda Cantu Montoy, City Attorney 

 

 

 
 

 

Jerry Jones, City Engineer 

 

  

61



 
 
City Council Staff Report   Page 11 of 12 
Walmart Reimbursement Agreement 
  

 

Exhibit ‘A’ 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Reimbursement Agreement 004 

W2058-Kerman_CA;_Store_#5701-01 -- 1777383.1 

62



City Council Staff Report   Page 12 of 12 
Walmart Reimbursement Agreement 
 

   

Exhibit ‘B’ 
 

 

 

 

Reimbursement Agreement 004 

W2058-Kerman_CA;_Store_#5701-01 -- 1777383 

63



 
 

 City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 7, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Toni Jones, Finance Director 
Subject: Purchase of Seven (7) 2016 Ford Explorers Through the State of California Department of Government 

Services Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for the Police Department 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Authorize the Finance Director to issue a Purchase Order for seven (7) 2016 Ford Explorers for a total of $198,471.50 
to Folsom Lake Ford in Sacramento. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
As recommended by the Chief of Police and approved by the City Council, the City is purchasing seven (7) 2016 
Ford Explorer Interceptors for a total of $198,471.49. Additional costs to equip the vehicles will be incurred once the 
vehicles are manufactured and delivered from the Ford dealer. The cost to equip each vehicle is estimated at 
$10,399.75 or $72,798.25 for seven. The total cost for the seven vehicles plus equipment and labor is $271,269.81. 
 
The City’s Internal Service Fund (ISF) budgeted $130,000 in fiscal year 2015/16 for the replacement of five (5) used 
vehicles from the Missouri Highway Patrol at $26,000 each. The Chief requested new vehicles and the City Council 
approved the purchase and determined the additional funds needed to purchase/outfit the vehicles in the amount 
$141,270 would be funded through a loan from the General Fund to the ISF. The ISF will pay an interest rate of 3% 
with annual payments over five (5) years in the amount of $30,846.95. Total interest paid for the term of the loan will 
be $12,964.75. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None 
 
DISCUSSION  
 

The State of California, Department of Government Services (DGS) recently completed a formal Request for 
Proposal for the Ford Interceptor and the bid was awarded to Folsom Lake Ford. To ensure the City was receiving 
the best price staff contacted a local Ford dealer, Future Ford of Clovis, which is used by other public safety agencies, 
for comparison but the local price was slightly higher. The City’s purchasing policy allows the City to “piggyback” on 
contracts for cooperative purchases without obtaining additional bids. 
 
The Chief reviewed the vehicle with accessories and chose to not include Ballistic Door panels therefore the State 
price was adjusted $2,500 less but other accessories were determined by Chief to be necessary resulting in a total 
price per vehicle in the amount of $28,353.07 including taxes, shipping and fees from Folsom Lake Ford in 
Sacramento. 
 

64



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 8 
Police Vehicle Purchase 
  

Comparing the same vehicle with Future Ford in Clovis the total price per vehicle is $29,103.05 a difference of 
$749.98 higher per vehicle or $5,249.86 total. 
 
Exhibit ‘A’ attached are bids from both dealers; Folsom Lake Ford and Future Ford of Clovis. Staff is recommending 
the bid be awarded to Folsom Lake Ford through the State Bid contract. The cost of delivery of the vehicles from 
Sacramento to Fresno is included in the total purchase price of $28,353.07 per vehicle. Folsom Ford is estimating 
twelve to fourteen weeks for delivery of the vehicles. 
 
The City’s policy is for new vehicles to be assigned to the front line police officers and administrative staff vehicles 
are rotated with the used front line vehicles to ensure the officers on patrol have the best equipment possible to 
perform their duties effectively and efficiently. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The Internal Service Fund (ISF) will fund $130,000 (2015/16 budgeted amount) and the General Fund will loan the 
ISF the remaining $141,270 to purchase and outfit the seven vehicles. Annual debt service payments in the amount 
of $30,847 for five years will be paid from the ISF to the General Fund for the initial purchase. The annual debt service 
will be expensed to the Police Department budget along with operation/maintenance and replacement costs on the 
entire police fleet. As the current fleet continues to age additional vehicles will need to be purchased creating more 
of a burden on the General Fund to pay for these vehicles if the Council chooses to continue to purchase new versus 
used vehicles.  
 
The basis of the ISF is to have the funds set aside to purchase replacement vehicles when necessary but the current 
funding level was based on used vehicles not new, a difference of $26,000 vs. $38,753 or $12,753 more per vehicle. 
The ISF will not be able to collect funds for the replacement of the vehicles until after the debt service is paid (5 
years) then the following five years funds will be collected for future replacement costs based on a ten year life of the 
vehicles. If the ten year life is not sustainable the City will have not have the funds in reserve for replacements and 
the additional future costs will have to be paid from the General Fund. 
 
The City Manager and Finance Director discussed the financial impact and believe the only viable option was to 
smooth out the impact on the General Fund over a ten year life cycle; five years debt service and five years set aside 
for future replacement, but are not confident the ten year life is sustainable. A more realistic projection would be a 
seven (7) to eight (8) year life. If this is the case the City might need to look for alternative revenue sources to cover 
the deficit.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None Required 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

A: Folsom Lake Ford and Future Ford of Clovis quotes 
B: Cooks Communications 

  

65



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 8 
Police Vehicle Purchase 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

 
 
  

66



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 8 
Police Vehicle Purchase 
  

Attachment ‘A’ (cont’d) 
 

 
  

67



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 8 
Police Vehicle Purchase 
  

Attachment ‘A’ (cont’d) 
 

 
  

68



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 8 
Police Vehicle Purchase 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

  

69



City Council Staff Report    Page 7 of 8 
Police Vehicle Purchase 
  

Attachment ‘B’ (cont’d) 
 

 
  

70



City Council Staff Report    Page 8 of 8 
Police Vehicle Purchase 
  

Attachment ‘B’ (cont’d) 
 

 
 

71



  
 

 City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY MANAGER 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 7, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: John Kunkel, Interim City Manager 
Subject: Resolution Approving Contract Planning Services 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving proposal from Collins and Schoettler for contract planning services. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The planning function was previously done by the former City Manager; with his departure, the City has been without 
the services of a certified planner. Most of the duties required in that department have been carried out by the 
planning technician, Olivia Pimentel. The City has requested proposals for contract planning services and received 
two proposals: The firm of Collins and Schoettler and Provost and Pritchard. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
 Based on the proposals submitted, choose the proposal which serves the needs of the City best. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Both proposals call for hourly rates for services rendered. Each firm has extensive experience in planning for 
municipal agencies. Both firms submitted quotes based on hourly rates. Collins and Schoettler’s price quoted was 
$90 per hour. Provost and Pritchard quoted a price range of $95-$120.00 per hour. Additionally, Collins and 
Schoettler were the previous contract planners for the City prior to Mr. Patlan’s arrival. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The 2015-16 budget has $50,000 budgeted for contract planning services. The amount budgeted should be more 
than enough to cover services rendered. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibits 
B. Proposals submitted 

  

72



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
APPROVING CONTRACT PLANNING SERVICES WITH 

COLLINS AND SCHOLETTER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Kerman desires a contract for planning services and 

 WHEREAS, The City of Kerman desires to engage a planner to provide services by reason of its 
qualifications and experience for performing such services; and  

 WHEREAS, Collins and Schoettler has provided a proposal outlining the scope of services. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN here 
authorizes the City Manager to execute agreement with Collins and Schoettler (Exhibit ‘A’) which incorporate 
the terms of the proposal.  

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on 
the 7th day of October, 2015 and passed at said regular meeting by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted. 
             
         _________________________  
                                         Stephen B. Hill  
         Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

 
 
  

73



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

Exhibit ‘A’ 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF KERMAN AND 
COLLINS AND SCHOETTLER FOR PLANNING SERVICES 

 
This agreement is made and entered into effective on ____________, by and between the City of Kerman, a 

California municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as “CITY”) and Collins and Schoettler, (hereinafter referred to 
as “CONSULTANT”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, CITY desires to obtain planning services; and 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is engaged in the business of furnishing technical and expert services in the field 
of planning as described in CONSULTANT’S Proposal for services to CITY which is attached hereto and incorporated 
by reference as “Exhibit B” and hereby represents that it desires to and is professionally and legally capable of 
performing the services called for by this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, this Agreement will be administered for CITY by City Manager.  

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals which are part of this Agreement and the terms 
and conditions hereinafter contained, it is mutually agreed as follows: 

1. Scope of Services. CONSULTANT shall perform to the satisfaction of CITY services as requested by 
CITY relating to Planning Services.  

2. Term of Agreement . This Agreement shall be effective from the date first set forth above and shall 
continue in full force and effect through October 31, 2016.  

3. Compensation. As presented in Exhibit ‘B’ to this agreement. 

4. Termination. 

 Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving notice of such termination (including the 
effective termination date) at least thirty (30) calendar days before the effective date of such termination. In the event 
of termination, all finished or unfinished documents, reports, or other materials prepared by CONSULTANT under this 
Agreement shall become CITY’S property. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to receive compensation for all satisfactory 
work completed prior to the effective date of termination.  

  

74



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

5. Indemnification.  

 To the furthest extent allowed by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend CITY and 
each of its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers from any and all loss, liability, fines, penalties, 
forfeitures, costs, and damages (whether in contract, tort, or strict liability, including but not limited to personal injury, 
death at any time, and property damage), and from any and all claims, demands, and actions in law or equity (including 
reasonable attorney’s fees and litigation expense) that arise out of, pertain to, or related to the negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT, its principals, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers in the 
performance of this Agreement. 

6. Insurance.  

(a) Throughout the life of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall pay for and maintain in full force 
and effect all insurance as required in Exhibit “A” or as may be authorized, and any additional insurance as may be 
required, in writing by City Manager or her designee at any time and in her sole discretion. 

(b) If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension, CONSULTANT or any of its 
subcontractors fail to maintain any required insurance in full force and effect, all services and work under this Agreement 
shall be discontinued immediately, and all payments due or that become due to CONSULTANT hall be withheld until 
notice is received by CITY that the required insurance has been restored to full force and effect and that the premiums 
therefore have been paid for a period satisfactory to CITY. Any failure to maintain the required insurance shall be 
sufficient cause for CITY to terminate this Agreement. No action taken by CITY pursuant to this section shall in any 
way relieve CONSULTANT of its responsibilities under this Agreement. This phrase “fail to maintain any required 
insurance” shall include, without limitation, notification received by CITY that an insurer has commenced proceedings, 
or has had proceedings commenced against it, indicating that the insurer is insolvent. 

7. Nondiscrimination. To the extent required by controlling federal, state, and local law, CONSULTANT shall not 
employ discriminatory practices in the provision of services, employment of personnel, or in any other respect 
on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical 
condition, marital status, sex, age, sexual orientation, ethnicity, status as a disabled veteran, or veteran of the 
Vietnam era. Independent Contractor. In the furnishing of the services provided for herein, CONSULTANT is 
acting solely as an independent contractor. Neither CONSULTANT, nor any of its officers, agents, or employees 
shall be deemed an officer, agent, employee, joint venture, partner, or associate of CITY for any purpose. CITY 
shall have no right to control or supervise or direct the manner or method by which CONSULTANT shall perform 
its work and functions. However, CITY shall retain the right to administer this Agreement so as to verify that 
CONSULTANT is performing its obligations in accordance with the terms and conditions thereof. 

9. Notices. Any notice required or intended to be given to either party under the terms of this Agreement 
shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be duly given if delivered personally, transmitted by facsimile 
followed by telephone confirmation of receipt, or sent by United States registered or certified mail, with 
postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the party which notice is to be given at the 
party’s address set forth on the signature page of this Agreement or at such other address as the 
parties may from time to time designate by written notice. Notices served by United States mail in the 
manner above described shall be deemed sufficiently served or given at the time of mailing thereof. 

10. Assignment. This agreement is personal to CONSULTANT and there shall be no assignment by 
CONSULTANT of its rights of obligations under this Agreement without the prior written approval of 
the City Manager or her designee.  

75



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

11. Compliance With Law. In providing the services required under this Agreement, CONSULTANT 
shall at all times comply with all applicable laws of the United States, the State of California, and 
CITY, and with all applicable regulations promulgated by federal, state, regional, or local 
administrative and regulatory agencies, now in force and as they may be enacted, issued, or 
amended during the term of this Agreement. 

12. Waiver. The waiver by either party of a breach by the other of any provision of this Agreement shall 
not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach of either the same or a 
different provision of this Agreement. No provisions of this Agreement may be waived unless in writing 
and signed by all parties to this Agreement. Waiver of any one provision herein shall not be deemed 
to be a waiver of any other provision herein. 

13. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in 
accordance with, the laws of the State of California, excluding, however, any conflict of laws rule which 
would apply the law of another jurisdiction. Venue for purposes of the filing of any action regarding 
enforcement or interpretation of this Agreement and any rights and duties hereunder shall be Fresno 
County, California. 

14. Headings. The section headings in this Agreement are for convenience and reference only and shall 
not be construed or held in any way to explain, modify, or add to the interpretation or meaning of the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

15. Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are severable. The invalidity or unenforceability of any 
one provision in this Agreement shall not affect the other provisions.  

16. Interpretation.  The parties acknowledge that this Agreement in its final form is the result of the 
combined efforts of the parties and that, should any provision of this Agreement be found to be 
ambiguous in any way, such ambiguity shall not be resolved by construing this Agreement in favor of 
or against either party, but rather by construing the terms in accordance with their generally accepted 
meaning. 

17. Attorneys’ Fees. If either party is required to commence any proceeding or legal action to enforce or 
interpret any term, covenant, or condition of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such proceeding 
or action shall be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorneys’ fees and legal 
expenses. 

18. Exhibits. Each exhibit and attachment referenced in this Agreement is, by the reference, incorporated 
into and made a part of this Agreement. 

19. Precedence of Documents. In the event of any conflict between the body of this Agreement and any 
Exhibit or Attachment hereto, the terms and conditions of the body of this Agreement shall control and 
take precedence over the terms and conditions expressed within the Exhibit or Attachment. 
Furthermore, any terms or conditions contained within any Exhibit or Attachment hereto which purport 
to modify the allocation of risk between the parties, provided for within the body of this Agreement, 
shall be null and void. 

20. Cumulative Remedies. No remedy or election hereunder shall be deemed exclusive but shall, 
wherever possible, be cumulative with all other remedies at law or in equity. 

76



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

21. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  The rights, interests, duties and obligations defined within this 
Agreement are intended for the specific parties hereto as identified in the preamble of this Agreement. 
Notwithstanding anything stated to the contrary n this Agreement, it is not intended that any rights or 
interests in this Agreement benefit or flow to the interest of any third parties. 

************************ 
 

CITY OF KERMAN 
 

  [Consultant Name]  

       
 
By: 

 
 

   
By: 

  
 

 

 City Manager      
       
       
Date:     Date:   
ATTEST:      
       
 
By: 

      

 Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

     

       
 
  

77



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries to 
persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder 
by the CONSULTANT, its agents, representatives, or employees. 
MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  
Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an 
“occurrence” basis for bodily injury and property damage, including products-completed operations, personal 
injury and advertising injury, with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit 
applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the general 
aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any auto), or if 
CONSULTANT has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less than $1,000,000 per 
accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and 
Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.  

 

If the CONSULTANT maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity requires and shall be 
entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of 
the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the Entity. 
Other Insurance Provisions 

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

Additional Insured Status 
The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds on the auto policy 
with respect to liability arising out of automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by or on behalf of the 
CONSULTANT; and on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on 
behalf of the CONSULTANT including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or 
operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the CONSULTANT’S insurance 
(at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10, 11 85 or both CG 20 10 and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions used).   

78



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  
Primary Coverage 
For any claims related to this contract, the CONSULTANT’S insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as 
respects the Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
the Entity, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the CONSULTANT’S insurance and shall 
not contribute with it. 
Notice of Cancellation 
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except with notice to the 
Entity. 
Waiver of Subrogation 
CONSULTANT hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said CONSULTANT 
may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance. CONSULTANT agrees to 
obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless 
of whether or not the Entity has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  
Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the Entity. The Entity may require the 
CONSULTANT to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense 
expenses within the retention.  
Acceptability of Insurers 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise 
acceptable to the Entity. 
Claims Made Policies 

If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:   
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning of contract 

work. 
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after 

completion of the contract of work. 
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a 

Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the CONSULTANT must purchase “extended reporting” 
coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.  

Verification of Coverage 
CONSULTANT shall furnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory endorsements or copies of the 
applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be 
received and approved by the Entity before work commences. However, failure to obtain the required documents 
prior to the work beginning shall not waive the CONSULTANT’S obligation to provide them. The Entity reserves the 
right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these 
specifications, at any time.  
  

79



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  
Subcontractors 
CONSULTANT shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated 
herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Entity is an additional insured on insurance required from subcontractors. 
Special Risks or Circumstances 
Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior 
experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.   
 
 
  

80



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

Exhibit ‘B’ 
 
  

81



City Council Staff Report   Page 11 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 
 
  

82



City Council Staff Report   Page 12 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 
 
 

 
  

83



City Council Staff Report   Page 13 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

84



City Council Staff Report   Page 14 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

85



City Council Staff Report   Page 15 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

86



City Council Staff Report   Page 16 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

87



City Council Staff Report   Page 17 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

88



City Council Staff Report   Page 18 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

89



City Council Staff Report   Page 19 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

90



City Council Staff Report   Page 20 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

91



City Council Staff Report   Page 21 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

92



City Council Staff Report   Page 22 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

93



City Council Staff Report   Page 23 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

94



City Council Staff Report   Page 24 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

95



City Council Staff Report   Page 25 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

96



City Council Staff Report   Page 26 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

97



City Council Staff Report   Page 27 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

98



City Council Staff Report   Page 28 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

99



City Council Staff Report   Page 29 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

100



City Council Staff Report   Page 30 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

101



City Council Staff Report   Page 31 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

102



City Council Staff Report   Page 32 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

103



City Council Staff Report   Page 33 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

104



City Council Staff Report   Page 34 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

105



City Council Staff Report   Page 35 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

106



City Council Staff Report   Page 36 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

107



City Council Staff Report   Page 37 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

108



City Council Staff Report   Page 38 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

109



City Council Staff Report   Page 39 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

110



City Council Staff Report   Page 40 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

111



City Council Staff Report   Page 41 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

112



City Council Staff Report   Page 42 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

113



City Council Staff Report   Page 43 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

114



City Council Staff Report   Page 44 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

115



City Council Staff Report   Page 45 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

116



City Council Staff Report   Page 46 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

117



City Council Staff Report   Page 47 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

118



City Council Staff Report   Page 48 of 48 
Consideration of Contact Planning Services 
  

 

119



 
 City of Kerman 

“Where Community Comes First” 
 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY MANAGER 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 7, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: John Kunkel Interim City Manager 
Subject: Planning Commission Stipend Survey 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council consider Planning Commission’s request and direct staff as appropriate. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
At the September 2, 2015 council meeting staff was directed to poll other Cities and see what their rate of compensation 
for their City Councils and their planning Commissions were. Staff has poled the Cities of Coalinga, Firebaugh, 
Kingsburg, Reedley, Selma, and Sanger (the results are posted in the discussion section of this report). 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
Council stipends are controlled by State law and are tiered by population. Government Code Section 36516 provides 
that cities with a population of 35,000 or less may receive a stipend up to $300 per month. Planning Commission 
stipends are usually set by Council action. Currently the Kerman Planning Commission meet once a month, if needed, 
and the current stipend is $50.00. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
 

City City Council Stipend Planning Commission Stipend 
Coalinga $300 per month $50.00 per meeting, meet twice per month 
Firebaugh None None 
Kingsburg $250 per month   Mayor $300 per month None 
Reedley $150 per month None 
Sanger  $300 $25.00 per meeting 
Selma  $300 per month None 
Kerman $300 per month $50.00 per meeting 

 
 

  

120



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 2 
Planning Commission Survey 
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
If Council grants the requested stipend increase of an additional $50.00 per meeting, the budget would be impacted 
by an additional $3,390.98 (assuming monthly meetings are held Oct 2015-June 2016 and all commissioner are 
present). 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None required 

 

121


	Agenda
	Minutes
	September 16, 29, October 1, 2015

	Payroll Report
	Payroll/Overtime

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Resolution Approving Agreement with the Madera Police Department for the Use of the Kerman Police Department's Firearms Range Facility
	Staff Report - Madera Police Department agreement

	Resolution Amending the 2015-16 Public Safety Employee Salary Scale to Include the Rank of Lieutenant
	Public Safety Employees Salary Scale 2015-2016

	Water Conservation Leak Notification Report
	Leak Notification Report

	Resolution Amending Condition No. 8 in Exhibit 'A' of Resolution 13-68 Relating to Display of Beer Merchandise by Walmart Stores Inc.
	Staff Report - Walmart 

	Resolution Approving Reimbursement Agreement for Walmart Off-Site Improvements
	Staff Report - Walmart Reimbursement

	Purchase of Seven (7) 2016 Ford Explorers Through the State of California Department of Government Services Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for the Police Department
	Staff Report - Police Vehicle Purchase

	Resolution Approving Contract Planning Services
	Staff Report - Planning Services

	Planning Commission Stipend Survey
	Staff Report - Planning Commission Survey


